
 
Visit the Township's Web Site www.twp.ferguson.pa.us  and sign up for Notify Me! to receive email notices about 
Township Information 
 

FERGUSON TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, February 18, 2020 
7:00 PM 

  

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. CITIZENS INPUT  
 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. February 3, 2020, Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting 
 

IV. SPECIAL REPORTS 

a. Schlow Centre Region Library Report 
b. Patton Township Open Space Preservation Referendum Presentation 
c. Centre Crest Presentation 

 
V. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

1. Public Hearing - Chapter 15, Motor Vehicles & Traffic Ordinance Amendment 
2. Public Hearing - 2020 Annual Operating Budget Amendment Resolution 
3. Draft Ordinance Review – Pine Grove Mills Small Area Plan Advisory Committee 

 
VI. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Consent Agenda 
2. Public Hearing - Acting Township Manager Resolution 
3. Centre Region Comprehensive Parks, Recreation, and Open Space Plan Review 
4. Discussion - Terraced Streetscape District Zoning Ordinance Amendment 
5. Authorities, Boards, and Commissions Appointments 

 
VII. REPORTS 

1. COG Committee Reports  
2. Other Regional Reports 
3. Staff Reports 

VIII. COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD 

 

IX. CALENDAR ITEMS – FEBRUARY/MARCH 

X. ADJOURNMENT 



 

 

Board of Supervisors 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, February 18, 2020 
7:00 p.m. 

 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. CITIZEN’S INPUT 
 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. February 3, 2020, Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting 
 

IV. SPECIAL REPORTS          40 minutes 

1. Schlow Centre Region Library – Susan Werner 
2. Patton Township Open Space Preservation Referendum – Doug Erickson, Patton Township Manager 
3. Centre Crest – May Armstrong 

 
V. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

1. A PUBLIC HEARING ON AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, CENTRE COUNTY, 
PENNSYLVANIA, AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 15, MOTOR VEHICLES 
AND TRAFFIC, PART 2, TRAFFIC REGULATIONS, SECTION 217 SCHOOL ZONES ESTABLISHED 
AND PART 4, GENERAL PARKING REGULATIONS, SECTION 403 PARKING PROHIBITED AT ALL 
TIMES IN CERTAIN LOCATIONS; SECTIONS 404 PARKING PROHBITED IN CERTAIN LOCATIONS 
CERTAIN DAYS AND HOURS; AND SECTION 409 RESIDENTIAL PERMIT PARKING.  5 minutes 

 
Narrative 
Provided with the agenda is a copy of the ordinance as advertised for public hearing implementing 
amendments to Chapter 15, Motor Vehicles and Traffic of the Ferguson Township Code of Ordinances. 
As described at the January 20th Regular Meeting, the amendment implements additional parking 
prohibitions on Rushcliffe Street in the Turnberry Traditional Town Development, as well as on-street 
permit parking requirements for the street.  Additionally, the amendment modifies the School Zones 
Established section of the ordinance by reflecting correct start and end times for the State College Area 
School District. 

 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors adopt the ordinance amending Chapter 15, Motor 
Vehicles and Traffic of the Code of Ordinances as described in the advertised ordinance for public 
hearing. 
 

Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors adopt the ordinance. 

 



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, February 18, 2020 
Page 2 

 

2. A PUBLIC HEARING ON A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, CENTRE COUNTY, 
PENNSYLVANIA ON AMENDING THE FERGUSON TOWNSHIP 2020 ANNUAL OPERATING 
BUDGET BY MODIFYING OR INCREASING EXPENDITURES AS DESCRIBED. 5 minutes 
 
Narrative 
Provided with the agenda is a copy of the resolution advertised for public amending the Ferguson 
Township 2020 Annual Operating Budget as described.  This amendment has been properly advertised 
in accordance with Section 7.08 of the Home Rule Charter and will provide additional funds in the Capital 
Reserve Fund to complete the design and engineering of the Park Hills Drainageway Project and the 
construction of the Public Works Maintenance Facility.  The additional funds are made available through 
transfers of eligible expenses to the Liquid Fuels Fund and the deferment of the acquisition of the bucket 
truck. 

 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution amending the 2020 
Operating Budget for Tuesday, February 18th.  
 

Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution. 

 
3. REVIEW OF DRAFT ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER ONE, ADMINISTRATION AND 

GOVERNMENT OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES BY ESTABLISHING A STANDING COMMITTEE 
FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PINE GROVE MILLS SMALL AREA PLAN 10 minutes 
 
Narrative 
The Board considered the establishment of a standing committee to provide recommendations on the 
implementation of the Pine Grove Mills Small Area Plan at its Regular Meeting on February 3rd.  In 
accordance with §1-452 of the Ferguson Township Administrative Code, the Board of Supervisors is 
permitted to establishment advisory boards provided it determines that the functions of the proposed 
board cannot feasibly be performed by one or more of the existing boards.  Provided with the agenda is 
a draft ordinance amendment for review and comment establishing the Pine Grove Mills Small Area Plan 
Advisory Committee.  This evening, the Board is asked to authorize the ordinance amendment for public 
hearing and adoption on March 16th.  If approved, the Board would be asked to accept applications for 
appointments to the Committee. 
 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors authorize advertisement of a public hearing 
amending Chapter One of the Ferguson Township Code of Ordinances by establishing a Standing 
Committee for the implementation of the Pine Grove Mills Small Area Plan for Monday, March 16th.  
 

Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors authorize advertisement of the ordinance amendment for public 
hearing. 

 
VI. NEW BUSINESS 

 
1. CONSENT AGENDA          5 minutes 

a. Board Member Request – Employer Paid Sick Leave 
 

2. A PUBLIC HEARING ON A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, CENTRE COUNTY, 
PENNSYLVANIA AUTHORIZING THE TOWNSHIP MANAGER TO APPOINT AN ACTING MANAGER 
DURING HIS ABSENCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, CHAPTER 1, 
PART 2, SECTION 207, ACTING MANAGER AND REPEALING RESOLUTION 2017-22. 
             10 minutes 



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, February 18, 2020 
Page 3 

Narrative 
Provided with the agenda is a copy of the resolution as advertised for public hearing authorizing the Township 
Manager to appoint an Acting Manager during his absence.  This is provided for under Chapter 2, Section 
207 of the Administrative Code where the Manager may appoint a temporary Acting Manager subject to the 
approval of the Board of Supervisors.  This may occur during temporary leaves of absence and has historically 
occurred when the Manager is away and would not be able to reasonably return and perform his duties should 
the need arise. 

Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution authorizing the Township 
Manager to appoint an Acting Manager during his absence in accordance with the Administrative Code, 
Chapter 1; Part 2, Section 207, Acting Manager and repealing Resolution 2017-22. 

Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution. 

3. CENTRE REGION COMPREHENSIVE PARKS, RECREATION, AND OPEN SPACE STUDY
MUNICIPAL COMMENTS         45 minutes

Narrative
At the January 27th meeting of the COG General Forum, a motion carried to forward the Parks and
Recreation Regional Comprehensive Plan to the Centre Region municipalities for comment.  The link to
the Final Draft of the Plan has been provided below, and it represents the work of the Steering
Committee, design consultant, and regional staff since March 27, 2017.  Municipal comments will be
included as an appendix of the final plan document.  There are fifteen “Core Themes” that are
incorporated in the Recommendations and Action Plan Chapters of the Plan.  It is recommended that
the Board review each theme and provide any comments to forward to the COG Executive Director.

Centre Region Comprehensive Parks, Recreation, and Open Space Study

Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors direct the Township Manager to forward its
comments on the Draft Centre Region Parks and Recreation Comprehensive Plan to the COG Executive
Director by March 17th.

Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors review and comment on the draft Centre Region Parks and Recreation 
Comprehensive Plan. 

4. TERRACED STREETSCAPE DISTRICT ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT DISCUSSIONS
20 minutes

Narrative
In the 2020 Operating Budget, the Board appropriated funding to engage a consultant to assist in the
rewrite of the Terraced Streetscape District zoning ordinance.  In 2016, a supplement was issued to the
contract with Environmental Planning & Design from Pittsburgh to complete this project; however, due
to the scope of work and other factors, staff is recommending that the Board terminate that contract and
authorize a Request for Proposals (RFP) to solicit new proposals from qualified firms for the project.

This evening, the Board is also being asked to provide input on the intended goals and outcomes of the
project to assist staff in preparation of the RFP.  The Ferguson Township Strategic Plan and Centre
Region Comprehensive Plan may provide guidance for the Board to consider as part of this discussion.
Specifically, the following questions may be considered to guide the Board’s discussion:

https://www.crpr.org/comprehensive-study


Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, February 18, 2020 
Page 4 

 What are the intended goals of this project?
 Who do you see as the stakeholders in this project?
 What is the target demographic, if there is one, for this geographic area?
 Is the Board interested in a traditional approach or a modern approach like a form-based code

or hybrid zoning district?
 Should parking requirements be incorporated in this scope?
 Do you know of other places that could be comparable to your vision for this district?
 Based on tonight’s conversation, do you see this process as a full rewrite or minor

amendments?

Jenna Wargo, Director of Planning & Zoning, will introduce the topic.  It is important to reiterate that the 
discussion this evening is intended to guide staff in the preparation of the RFP, and not discuss a detailed 
vision for the Terraced Streetscape District.  The Board and Planning Commission’s responses will be 
valuable in preparing the scope of work and stated objectives as well as identifying qualified firms in 
these individual areas that may be more suited to complete the work.  Provided with the agenda are 
several maps of the Terraced Streetscape District boundaries to assist with the discussion. 

Recommended motion: That the Board of Supervisors cancel the agreement with Environmental 
Planning & Design for the Terraced Streetscape District zoning ordinance amendment. 

Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors cancel the contract with Environmental Planning & Design and discuss 
the goals of the Request for Proposals for the Terraced Streetscape Zoning District ordinance 
amendment. 

5. APPOINTMENTS TO FERGUSON TOWNSHIP AUTHORITIES, BOARDS, AND COMMISSIONS
5 minutes

Narrative
Typically, the Board of Supervisors appoints individuals to fill vacancies on Township Authorities,
Boards, and Commissions (ABCs) at the Reorganizational Meeting each year.  However, there remain
vacancies that are not filled due to lack of applicants.  Recently, several applicants have submitted
requests to be appointed to the following ABCs:  University Area Joint Authority; Parks and Recreation
Committee; and Vacancy Board.  The applications have been provided with the agenda packet.  Per the
attached policy adopted by the Board in 2017, the Board will conduct interviews of all applicants who
have expressed interest in serving on ABCs but may appoint individuals who are the sole applicant for
a vacancy without interview if desired.  The Township Manager will introduce the item and review the
terms of the vacancies.

Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors schedule interviews of candidates for Ferguson Township Authorities, 
Boards, and Commissions. 

VII. STAFF AND COMMITTEE REPORTS

1. COG COMMITTEE REPORTS 20 minutes 
a. Facilities Ad Hoc Committee
b. Public Safety Committee
c. Finance Committee
d. Executive Committee

2. OTHER REGIONAL REPORTS 5 minutes 



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, February 18, 2020 
Page 5 

 

 
3. STAFF REPORTS          15 minutes 

a. Manager’s Report 
b. Public Works Director 
c. Planning & Zoning Director 
d. Chief of Police 

 
VIII. COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD 

IX. CALENDAR ITEMS – FEBRUARY/MARCH 

X. ADJOURNMENT 



 

 

FERGUSON TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
Regular Meeting 

Monday, February 3, 2020 
7:00 PM 

 
I. ATTENDANCE 

The Board of Supervisors held its first regular meeting of the month on Monday, 
February 3, 2020, at the Ferguson Township Municipal Building.  In attendance were: 
 
Board: Steve Miller, Chairman 

Lisa Strickland 
Patty Stephens 
Prasenjit Mitra 

Staff: Dave Pribulka, Township Manager 
Centrice Martin, Assistant to the Manager 
Dave Modricker, Public Works Director 
Chris Albright, Chief of Police 
Eric Endresen, Director of Finance 
 

Others in attendance included:  Faith Norris, Recording Secretary; Frank Savino, Central PA 4th Fest; 
Ben Strickland; Matt Heller; Jacob Heller; Seth Trout; Oliver Kennea; Paul Tonkuel. 
 

II. CALL TO ORDER 

Mr. Miller called the Monday, February 3, 2020, regular meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  
 
Mr. Miller acknowledged Scout Pack 44 in attendance. 
 

III. CITIZENS INPUT  
None. 
 

IV. SPECIAL REPORTS 
 
Centre Region Parks and Recreation Authority.  Mr. Keough reported on five items: 

a. Millbrook Marsh – Discussed boardwalk infrastructure and the need for repair.  Mr. Keough further 
discussed the process of getting permits to do the work.  He hopes for support from all of the local 
municipalities. 

b. Parks & Recreation has changed its software package that interacts with the public.  Mr. Keough 
went into detail on what the software can do and that it significantly cost less than the prior software 
package. 

c. RFPs were sent out to local vendors to provide food at listed recreation sites.  This is in preparation 
to collect fees and complete required permits. 

d. Update on Whitehall Road Regional Park – CRPR is looking for a project manager that has the 
skills necessary to coordinate the project. 

e. Parks & Recreation.  Discussion followed on report received and deadline for the Comp Plan in 
March 2020.  Mr. Keough discussed financial match opportunity for the Comp Plan process.   
 
Further discussion followed on the grant match towards the feasibility study and boardwalk repairs.  
The Board discussed the construction process, base bids, costs and investment opportunities, 
environmental impact of the boardwalk, and the campaign for the Marsh.  Mr. Mitra noted there is 
community support and that more information is needed per residents’ feedback.  The feasibility 
study is being done to determine impact vs. need and usability. 

 
V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES.  

Mr. Mitra moved that the Board of Supervisors approve the Board of Supervisors Minutes of January 
20, 2020.  Ms. Stephens seconded the motion.  The motion as amended passed unanimously.  



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, February 3, 2020 
Page 2 

 

 
 

VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

1. AUTHORIZATION OF A PUBLIC HEARING ON A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE FERGUSON 
TOWNSHIP 2020 ANNUAL OPERATING BUDGET BY MODIFYING OR INCREASING 
EXPENDITURES. 
 
Mr. Pribulka reviewed the item for authorization of a public hearing.  The purpose of the proposed 
budget amendment is to shuffle expenses from the Capital Reserve fund into the Township’s Liquid 
Fuels fund for purchasing of certain eligible transportation-related expenditures.  Noted, was 
deferral of purchasing a bucket truck until 2021.  Mr. Endresen highlighted the amendments in the 
draft resolution as provided with the agenda. 
 
Clarification was made on state fund allocations that are fixed or stable from year to year.  Mr. 
Pribulka clarified the municipal budgeting process, specifically Capital Reserve funds eligible for 
Liquid Fuels expenditures.  Discussion followed on the new public works building breakdown of 
costs for a construction manager.  Discussion continued on deferral of purchasing equipment until 
2021. 
 
Ms. Strickland moved that the Board of Supervisors schedule a public hearing on a resolution 
amending the 2020 Operating Budget for Tuesday, February 18th.  Ms. Dininni   seconded the 
motion.  The motion as amended passed unanimously.  
 

2. PINE GROVE MILLS SMALL AREA PLAN AD HOC ADVISORY BOARD. 
  
Mr. Pribulka reviewed the history of the item and discussed options received on implementing the 
Small Area Plan (SAP).  He reviewed options for a standing committee vs. an ad hoc committee.  
The standing committee requires certain criteria and ordinance adoption by the Township.  A 
formation of an ad hoc committee formed for specific tasks or objectives does not require an 
ordinance amendment and there is less involvement in governance structure.   
 
Mr. Heller reviewed the SAP adoption and next steps.  He voiced his support for a standing 
committee to foster continued discussions.   
 
Board discussion followed on what is involved with and clarification of the two types of committees 
and the communities’ involvement.  It was determined that an ad hoc committee is more flexible 
vs. a board-appointed standing committee where an ordinance is required and more record keeping 
is needed.  Discussion followed on the makeup of other Township project-specific committees.  
Board members discussed their recommendations and some consensus for a formal standing 
committee.  Mr. Pribulka noted that both committees would have the same stature with the 
community and requirements for advertisement in accordance with the Sunshine Act.  Mr. Pribulka 
noted that a component of the Administrative Code says a committee cannot be established unless 
determined that an existing committee cannot serve that function. 
 
Ms. Dininni moved that the Board of Supervisors authorize the establishment of a standing 
committee for the purpose of providing advice and recommendations to the Township Manager 
relative to implementation of the Pine Grove Mills Small Area Plan.  Mr. Mitra seconded the motion.  
The motion passed unanimously.  

  



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, February 3, 2020 
Page 3 

 

 
3. DONATION REQUEST – CENTRAL PENNSYLVANIA FOURTH FEST, FRANK SAVINO, 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR. 
 
Mr. Savino reviewed his history with the community and the Central PA 4th Fest.  He discussed the 
numerous volunteer service, in kind/monitory funding and other factors for hosting the event.  Noted 
was the increased cost of security, equipment, and advertising.  Mr. Savino noted that the Central 
PA 4th Fest celebration is one of the top celebrations nationally. 
 
Discussion followed on concern of where the funding is being spent, community contributions and 
the Township’s budgeted sponsorships.  Discussion followed on amount to contribute and other 
elements of the fest. 
 
Ms. Dininni moved that the Board of Supervisors authorize a contribution in the amount of $2,000 
to the 2020 Central Pennsylvania Fourth Fest.  Ms. Strickland seconded the motion.  The motion 
passed unanimously. 
 
Mr. Pribulka discussed standing allocations and the donation policy that last year’s Board approved 
a change for the 2020 budget that amount designations be left open and consider specific donation 
requests based on merit.   
 

4. DONATION REQUEST – DISCOVERY SPACE, MICHELE CROWL, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR. 
 
Ms. Crowl reviewed statistics and history of Discovery Space as well as it being an asset to the 
community for ages 6 months to 14 years old.  The draw is from nine counties.  A new community 
makerspace with shared tools is being opened to the public called The Rivit that can target 
entrepreneurs.  Discussion followed on support for a business plan; prototyping; fees (to cover use 
of equipment and consumables); scholarship program for CAP funds; buy-in passport program; 
community classes; and potential for membership levels.  The support request was for $5,000 over 
three years to help with the common area and parking lot safety and security system.  Discovery 
Space and The Rivit are both a non-profit. 
 
Mr. Heller noted is support for establishing access to everybody and outreach from Discovery 
Space.  Discussion followed on affordability, general COG funding, access and services, and 
Township funding for one year. 
 
Mr. Miller moved that the Board of Supervisors authorize a contribution of $2,500 to Discovery 
Space.  Ms. Strickland seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Mr. Miller called for a short recess. 
 

5. AUTHORIZATION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH JACOBS 
ENGINEERING FOR TRAFFIC SIGNAL SYSTEM CONSULTING SERVICES. 
 
Mr. Modricker reviewed the item for authorization. 
 
Clarification on budgeted amount was discussed in response to a Board member’s question.  Mr. 
Modricker noted the firm was PennDOT recommended that they do this type of contracted work 
with. 
 



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, February 3, 2020 
Page 4 

Ms. Dininni moved that the Board of Supervisors authorize the execution of the professional 
services agreement with Jacobs Engineering and the Proposal for Traffic Signal System Consulting 
Services dated January 23, 2020, with a maximum fee amount of $50,000.  Ms. Stephens 
seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 

6. AUTHORIZATION OF CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR
THE FERGUSON TOWNSHIP PUBLIC WORKS MAINTENANCE FACILITY.

Mr. Pribulka reviewed the history of the professional services contract for authorization.  Mr.
Modricker reviewed the services and work scope of what a construction manager would provide.

Discussion followed on number of firms interviewed and location of both firms in conjunction to the
Township.

Ms. Dininni moved that the Board of Supervisors authorize the contract with WRA for construction
management services for the Ferguson Township Public Works Maintenance Facility in an amount
of $246,040 plus direct expenses.  Ms. Strickland seconded the motion.  The motion passed
unanimously.

7. AUTHORIZATION OF CONTRACT FOR SPECIAL INSPECTION SERVICES FOR THE
FERGUSON TOWNSHIP PUBLIC WORKS MAINTENANCE FACILITY.

Mr. Modricker reviewed the professional services contract for authorization.  The proposed facility
cannot be inspected by the construction manager and is required by Centre Region Code.

Ms. Dininni moved that the Board of Supervisors authorize the contract with CMT Laboratories,
Inc., for special inspection services for the Ferguson Township Public Works Maintenance Facility
in an estimated amount of $41,450.00.  Ms. Strickland seconded the motion.  The motion passed
unanimously.

Discussion followed on firm chosen vs. other firms.  The motion passed unanimously.

8. AMENDMENTS TO THE FERGUSON TOWNSHIP ZONING MAP

Mr. Pribulka reviewed the item as provided to continue the process from last year.  Ms. Wargo
reviewed the map’s geography.

Discussion followed on shared zoning in reference to the Industrial Zoning District and engaging with
land owners or other municipalities for future opportunities.  Mr. Pribulka noted staff is aware of the
Board’s interest with this topic that can be tabled for another meeting.  Discussion followed with staff on
the zoned properties.

Ms. Dininni moved that the Board of Supervisors refer the Zoning Map Amendment to the Planning
Commission for review and comment.  Mr. Mitra seconded the motion.  The motion passed
unanimously.

Clarification was made on the amendment to the zoning map in response to a question.

VII. NEW BUSINESS

1. CONSENT AGENDA

a. Treasurer’s Report – November 2019



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, February 3, 2020 
Page 5 

b. Treasurer’s Report – December 2019
c. Sponsorship Request – Women’s Leadership Conference, $400.00
d. Sponsorship Request – Leadership Centre County, $500.00

Ms. Dininni moved that the Board of Supervisors approve the Consent Agenda and accept the 
Treasurers’ reports.  Ms. Strickland seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 

2. ZONING APPEALS/REQUESTS FOR VARIANCES.

a. Zoning Appeal/Request for Variance – 900, 904, 906, 912, and 916 West College Ave./West
Calder Way

Mr. Pribulka introduced the concept plan.  Two applications were filed:  Zoning Appeal and Request 
for Variance.  Descriptions of both applications followed.  Discussion followed on clarification on 
frontage parking and zoning laws and consistency with the zoning code.  Mr. Miller clarified how 
the Board takes positions on zonings and variances. 

Ms. Strickland moved that the Board of Supervisors remain neutral on the request for variance 
submitted by York Acquisitions, LLC for properties on West College Avenue in the Terraced 
Streetscape District.  Ms. Dininni seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 

3. CITIZEN’S REQUEST – PINE GROVE MILLS CROSSWALKS.

Mr. Pribulka reviewed the item as provided with the agenda.  Mr. Modricker did an overview of the
crosswalks and history in the Township.  Staff has discussed this item with other communities on
their policy.  Some areas are not in the right-of-way, meaning private property.  Discussion followed
on the walkways that Ferguson Township can do line striping on and what is reasonable.
Discussion followed on support, staff time, and whether it is appropriate for the mobility study.

Ms. Dininni moved that the Board of Supervisors direct staff to evaluate the resident’s requests for
the installation of crosswalks in Pine Grove Mills and, where warranted, include the painting of
crosswalks in the 2020 line striping contract.  Ms. Strickland seconded the motion.

Clarification was discussed on public bus stops that require crossings.

The motion passed unanimously.

4. AWARD OF CONTRACT 2020-C13, STREET TREE PLANTING.

Mr. Modricker reviewed the contract and bids.

Ms. Dininni moved that the Board of Supervisors award Contract 2020-C13 Street Trees, in the
amount of $11,094.78 to Luther Lawn Service LLC, as recommended in the Public Works Director’s
memorandum of January 28, 2020.  Ms. Strickland seconded the motion.  The motion passed
unanimously.

VIII. STAFF AND COMMITTEE REPORTS

1. COG COMMITTEE REPORTS

a. Executive Committee.  Mr. Miller noted the agenda was in the packet and items were discussed
at COG.



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, February 3, 2020 
Page 6 

b. TLU Committee.  Ms. Strickland recapped the CBICC event on Workforce Housing and
transportation; expanded discussion followed on bikes, roads and bus pass initiative - Board
and staff feedback is welcomed on the bus pass system.  Discussion followed on an overall
transportation plan.  Other report topics included construction, demographic trends, ACS
survey/census, and committee roles and overlap.

c. Ms. Dininni inquired if there were any questions from the last regular meeting committee reports
that she was not able to report on.  Ms. Strickland noted COG orientation and introduction on
HazMat service was good.

2. OTHER REGIONAL REPORTS

a. Solar Power Purchase Agreement Working Group (SPPAWG).  Mr. Endresen attends the
meetings.  The agenda was provided in the packet.  Mr. Pribulka noted he is still waiting on the
request for agenda item from the group that should be forthcoming soon.

b. Climate Action & Adaption Technical Advisory Group (TAG).  Agenda was provided in packet.
Brandi Robinson is the Township’s representative.  The Township’s Climate Action Committee
met today and is beginning to work on milestones for greenhouse gas emissions reduction that
is being discussed at the regional level and PS&E Committee is to discuss this at an upcoming
meeting.  Discussion followed on resolution process and both committees’ goals.

c. Centre County Metropolitan Planning Organization (CCMPO).  Ms. Strickland reviewed the
organizational appointments; federal performance measures for safety targets and statics;
Shingletown Road speed limit limitations; responsiveness and suggestions on sign alerts; data
collection request to reduce speed limit with Harris Township; Routes 26/45 is fully funded; and
availability of safety related funds.  Discussion followed on the crosswalk at Musser Gap and
speed data information.

d. Centre Area Cable Consortium (CACC).  Mr. Pribulka reported on the reorganizational meeting.
Since the franchise agreement is complete, the CACC meetings will go dormant for a while until
input is needed for renegotiation of the agreement in a few years.

3. STAFF REPORTS

a. Township Manager.  Mr. Pribulka reviewed his report as provided with the agenda.  Highlights
included meeting on Parks & Recreation Safety inspections improvements.  Ms. Dininni and
Mr. Pribulka discussed the replacement of old equipment for Fairbrook Park and the master
plan update.  Two meetings are scheduled for regional demonstrations to review permitting
software; meeting and review of the pension plans for non-uniform employees-update given;
Manager and Chair attended Casey Technology Project’s ribbon ceremony with media
coverage; will meet with PSU COE regarding Stonebridge property owner complaints of the
PSU facility at Cato Park; Coffee and Conversation was well attended on January 25th at
Baileyville Community Hall that included discussion on stormwater management and local
police use of radar bill.  The manager will be out of office a couple of upcoming days and Mr.
Modricker will be Acting Manager during that time. The Manager attended the Zoning Hearing
Board on behalf of the Township for opposition to Islamic Society request - technical
deficiencies identified and applicant will correct and resubmit - hearing is tabled until
resubmission.  Doug Erickson, Patton Township Manager, is confirmed for February 18th Board
Meeting on the topic of open space.



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, February 3, 2020 
Page 7 

b. Public Works Director.  Mr. Modricker reviewed renovations to the Administration building.
Update on special inspections for the PWMF in reference to the agenda item contract approved
at this meeting; February’s Stormwater Fee Study Phase II Advisory Committee meeting was
moved to March 25th; Tree Commission meeting is February 18th; update on winter operations;
and update on street projects.  In response to Mr. Mitra’s question, Mr. Modricker discussed
remediation credits structure in regards to the stormwater fee study.

c. Planning & Zoning Director.  The next meeting is February 10th; plan updates as provided with
the agenda.  Ms. Wargo attended the Economic Development Summit.  Ms. Dininni and staff
had an expanded discussion on the parking lot at the O W Houts site that is being used as an
off-site pass through laydown yard.  Staff came to the conclusion after a meeting with PSU that
the Houts site is pre-existing and a non-conforming use.  A discussion followed on surveyed
land with land development plans.

IX. COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD – None.

X. CALENDAR ITEMS – None.

XI. ADJOURNMENT

With no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, Ms. Dininni motioned to adjourn the 

meeting.  The meeting adjourned at 11:05 p.m.

Mr. Miller noted that there is an executive session following this meeting. 

Respectfully submitted, 

David Pribulka, Township Manager 
For the Board of Supervisors 

















Colonnade - 1995



Colonnade - 2014



N. Atherton St. & Gray’s Woods Blvd – ‘95



I-99 & Gray’s Woods Blvd – ‘14



1999 - 2001

v



http://twp.patton.pa.us/



1999 - 2001

v



Referendum – November 2001

“Shall debt in the sum of 2,500,000 dollars for 
the purpose of financing acquisition of 
development rights, conservation easements, 
and land for the preservation of open space be 
authorized to be incurred as debt approved by 
the electors?”



2004



2006





And Then

• 2008 Survey says:  Keep Going

• 2010 Open Space Debt re-fi’d: bonds to be 
retired in 2014

• 2013 Board of Supervisors: Phase 2 is a go

• 2014 -- 78.56% supported dedicating a portion of their 

property taxes to acquire and preserve additional Open Space 
lands in the Township.

• Nov 2014 Referendum -- $3.5 Million



September 2016

Hamer Foundation donates $750,000



Gray’s Woods Preserve

Toftrees/BC Rail Trail 
Easement

$4.25 Million

December 2017



Open Space Stewardship Committee

Provides community oversight and input on the 
land management programs for Township 
owned Open Space.

Formed in 2007

7 Resident members

6 year terms; 2 term limit

Meet 4 to 5 times per year







Ag Conservation



Committee Field Trip – June 2019







Lady Slippers in the Haugh Family Preserve

Questions?



Contact info

Doug Erickson
Patton Township

814-234-0271
patton@twp.patton.pa.us
http://twp.patton.pa.us/

mailto:patton@twp.patton.pa.us
http://twp.patton.pa.us/


 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, 
CENTRE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA CHAPTER 15 MOTOR VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC, PART 2, 
TRAFFIC REGULATIONS, SECTION 217 SCHOOL ZONES ESTABLISHED AND, PART 4, GENERAL 
PARKING REGULATIONS, SECTION 403 PARKING PROHIBITED AT ALL TIMES IN CERTAIN 
LOCATIONS; SECTION 404 PARKING PROHIBITED IN CERTAIN LOCATIONS CERTAIN DAYS AND 
HOURS; AND SECTION 409 RESIDENTIAL PERMIT PARKING. 
 
The Board of Supervisors of the Township of Ferguson hereby ordains: 
 
Section 1 Chapter 15 Motor Vehicles, Part 2, Traffic Regulations, Section 217 School Zones 
Established  
 
The following portion of SR 45 is hereby established as a School Zone pursuant to the Pennsylvania Motor 
Vehicle Code, 75 P.S. Section 3365(b), as amended with the following speed limits and sign restriction: 
 
Highway Between Speed Limit Sign Restriction 
SR 45 A point 500 feet east of the 

easterly driveway of the 
Ferguson Township 
Elementary School in the 
Village of Pine Grove Mills, to 
a point 500 feet west of the 
westerly driveway of 
Ferguson Township 
Elementary School 

15 m.p.h. On school days only from 

7:40 a.m. - 8:10 a.m. 

2:50 p.m. - 3:20 p.m. 

12:25 p.m. - 12:40 p.m. (Act 80 
Events) 

 

 
Section 2 Chapter 15 Motor Vehicles, Part 4, General Parking Regulations, Section 403 Parking 

Prohibited at All Times in Certain Locations is hereby amended to establish the following 
parking restrictions on the following streets: 

 
Parking Prohibited at All Times in Certain Locations. 

 
Delete: 
Street Side Between 

Rushcliffe Street Both 
A point 300 feet south of Circleville Road and a 
point 300 feet west of Havershire Boulevard 

 
Add: 

Rushcliffe Street Both 
A point 180 feet south of Circleville Road and a 
point 215 feet west of Havershire Boulevard 

 
Section 3 Chapter 15 Motor Vehicles, Part 4, General Parking Regulations, Section 404 Parking 

Prohibited in Certain Locations Certain Days and Hours is hereby amended to establish the 
following parking restrictions on the following streets: 

 
Parking Prohibited in Certain Locations Certain Days and Hours. 
 
Delete: 
Street Side Between Days Hours 



 

 

Rushcliffe 
Street 

East 
Circleville Road and a point 300 
feet south of Circleville Road 

Monday 
through 
Wednesday 

2:00 AM Monday to 
2:00 AM Wednesday 

Rushcliffe 
Street 

North 
Havershire Boulevard and a 
point 300 feet west of 
Havershire Boulevard 

Monday 
through 
Wednesday 

2:00 AM Monday to 
2:00 AM Wednesday 

Rushcliffe 
Street 

South 
Havershire Boulevard and a 
point 300 feet west of 
Havershire Boulevard 

Wednesday 
through 
Monday 

2:00 AM Wednesday 
to 2:00 AM Monday 

Rushcliffe 
Street 

West 
Circleville Road and a point 300 
feet south of Circleville Road 

Wednesday 
through 
Monday 

2:00 AM Wednesday 
to 2:00 AM Monday 

 
Add: 
Street Side Between Days Hours 

Rushcliffe 
Street 

East 
Circleville Road and a point 180 
feet south of Circleville Road 

Monday 
through 
Wednesday 

2:00 AM Monday to 
2:00 AM Wednesday 

Rushcliffe 
Street 

North 
Havershire Boulevard and a 
point 215 feet west of 
Havershire Boulevard 

Monday 
through 
Wednesday 

2:00 AM Monday to 
2:00 AM Wednesday 

Rushcliffe 
Street 

South 
Havershire Boulevard and a 
point 215 feet west of 
Havershire Boulevard 

Wednesday 
through 
Monday 

2:00 AM Wednesday 
to 2:00 AM Monday 

Rushcliffe 
Street 

West 
Circleville Road and a point 180 
feet south of Circleville Road 

Wednesday 
through 
Monday 

2:00 AM Wednesday 
to 2:00 AM Monday 

 

Section 4  Chapter 15 Motor Vehicles, Part 4, General Parking Regulations, Section 409 Residential 
Permit Parking is hereby amended as follows: 

 
1. § 15-409(3) “Criteria” is amended to add and modify the following subsections: 

 
a. B. During the same period as specified in Subsection 3A, directly above, 10% or more of 

the vehicles parked (or standing) on the streets in the area are not owned and/or driven 
by a resident or proprietor of that residential area. 

 
Provided: In determining that a specific area identified as impacted and eligible for 
residential permit parking is designated as a residential permit parking area, the following 
factors are taken into consideration: 

 
(1) The local and metropolitan needs with respect to clean air and environment. 
(2) The possibility of a reduction in total vehicle miles driven in the Township of Ferguson. 
(3) The likelihood of alleviating traffic congestion, illegal parking and related health and safety 
hazards. 
(4) The proximity of public transportation to the residential area. 
(5) The desire and need of the residents for residential permit parking and their willingness to 
bear the administrative costs in connection with it. 
(6) The need for parking in excess of the residential permit parking program in proximity to 
establishments located in the residential permit parking area and used by the general public 
for religious, health or educational purposes. 
(7) The need to limit the number of residential parking permits to the capacity of available on-
street parking space. 



 

 

 
b. C. Special Requests – Property Owners may ask the Board of Supervisors to designate 

certain streets as residential permit parking areas. 
 

c. D. In determining that a specific area identified as impacted and eligible for residential 
permit parking designation, the following factors are taken into consideration: 

i. (1) The local and metropolitan needs with respect to clean air and environment.  
ii. (2) The possibility of a reduction in total vehicle miles driven in the Township of 

Ferguson.  
iii. (3) The likelihood of alleviating traffic congestion, illegal parking and related health 

and safety hazards.  
iv. (4) The proximity of public transportation to the residential area.  
v. (5) The desire and need of the residents for residential permit parking and their 

willingness to bear the administrative costs in connection with it.  
vi. (6) The need for parking in excess of the residential permit parking program in 

proximity to establishments located in the residential permit parking area and used by 
the general public for religious, health or educational purposes.  

vii. (7) The need to limit the number of residential parking permits to the capacity of 
available on-street parking space. 
 

2. § 15-409(4) Designation of Residential Permit Parking Areas is amended as follows: 
 

Area Bounded by and Including 
North side 
South side 

Rushcliffe Street 
Rushcliffe Street 

 
3. § 15-409(6) Issuance of Permits is amended as follows: 

a. A. Owner occupied residence – up to four permits per residence or parcel. 
a. Rushcliffe Street – Up to two permits per residence. 
b. B. Leased residence – up to three permits per residence and a maximum of four 

per parcel. 
c. Rushcliffe Street – Up to two permits per leased/rental residence. 

 
 
ORDAINED and ENACTED this 18th day of February, 2020 
 
       TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
 

             
                                                                  By:___________________________________ 

                Steve Miller, Chairman 
        Board of Supervisors 
 
 
[ S E A L ]             
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
   
By:_________________________________ 
     David Pribulka, Secretary 



 

 

RESOLUTION NO.____________ 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, CENTRE COUNTY, 
PENNSYLVANIA AMENDING THE 2020 FERGUSON TOWNSHIP OPERATING 
BUDGET BY MODIFYING OR INCREASING EXPENDITURES AS DESCRIBED. 
 

WHEREAS, the Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors adopted the 2020 
Township Operating Budget on December 9, 2019, projecting revenues and expenditures 
for the 2020 fiscal year; and 
 

WHEREAS, Section 7.08 of the Ferguson Township Home Rule Charter provides 
for amendment of the Township Operating Budget after adoption; and  
 

WHEREAS·, the Board of Supervisors declared an amendment of the budget on 
February 18, 2020 and notice of the public hearing was duly and properly advertised. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, the Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors amends the 
2020 Township Budget as follows: 
 

Fund & Account Description Subtotal 
Original 
Budget 

Change 
Revised 
Budget 

30.446.313 
Add Park Hills 

drainage design 
 $0 $150,000 $150,000 

30.409.750 
Add 7% contingency 

for PW garage 
$490,000    

30.409.750 
Add Inspections PW 

garage 
$41,450    

30.409.750 
Add Sewer Permits 

for PW garage 
$25,000    

30.409.750 
Add Construction 
manager for PW 

garage 
$300,000    

30.409.750 Less Original Budget $-500,000 $500,000 $356,450 $856,450 

30.430.760 
Move 2011 Ford 

F550 to Liquid Fuels 
-$121,700    

30.430.760 
Move Skid Steer to 

Liquid Fuels 
-$100,800    

30.430.760 
Move Bomag roller 

to Liquid Fuels 
-$52,900 $275,400 -$275,400 $0 

35.430.760 
Receive Capital 
Reserve items 

 $0 $275,400 $275,400 

      

30.430.760 
Postpone bucket 

truck to 2021 
 $204,000 -$204,000 $0 

      

30.430.750 
Move flail mower to 

liquid fuels 
-$21,400    

30.430.750 
Move heat lance to 

liquid fuels 
-$3,100    

30.430.750 
Move overhead 

luminaires to liquid 
fuels 

-$2,000    



30.430.750 
Move traffic signal 
LEDs to liquid fuels 

-$4,400 $30,900 -$30,900 $0 

35.430.750 
Receive Capital 
Reserve items 

$0 $30,900 $30,900 

RESOLVED this 18th day of February 2020. 

 TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 

  ________________________ 
 By:   Steve Miller, Chair 

  Board of Supervisors 

[ S E A L ] 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 
David G. Pribulka, Secretary 



 

 

Pine Grove Mills Small Plan Advisory Committee.  

Section 1 - Creation and Membership.  
 
1. To provide recommendations on the implementation of the Pine Grove Mills Small Area Plan, an 

advisory committee is hereby created, which shall consist of five/seven members appointed by the 
Board of Supervisors. Appointees to the Committee shall be residents of Ferguson Township.  

3. Each member of the Committee shall be appointed to four-year staggered terms. A vacancy on the 
Pine Grove Mills Small Area Plan Advisory Committee, which occurs for reasons other than the 
expiration of a term, shall be filled by the Board of Supervisors for the remainder of the unexpired term.  

4. The Pine Grove Mills Small Area Plan Advisory Committee shall meet at least quarterly and shall adopt 
appropriate bylaws to conduct meetings and business. The Township Manager shall coordinate staff 
support for the Committee. Upon request subject to approval of the Township Manager, additional 
technical assistance may be provided by other Township departments.  

5. The Committee's role is advisory to the Township Manager and the Board of Supervisors.  

6. Committee members shall not be compensated for their activities.  

Section 2 - Organization, Records, and Meetings.  
 
1. Members of the Committee shall elect a Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, and such other officers as 

they may deem necessary. All officers shall be eligible for reelection.  

2. The Committee shall keep a written record of its meetings in accordance with the law. The Committee 
shall provide the Board of Supervisors with minutes, annual work plans or other reports of its activities, 
either written or oral, as may be requested or required. For the purposes of taking action, a quorum of 
three/four members must be present.  

Section 3 - Responsibilities.  
 
The Committee shall advise the Township Manager and Board of Supervisors on matters pertaining to the 
implementation of the Pine Grove Mills Small Area Plan. Responsibilities may include, but are not 
necessarily limited to the following: 

A. Prioritizing objectives and action steps described in the Small Area Plan;  

B. Identifying and assisting in the preparation of grant applications and requests for funding to advance 
the projects described in the Small Area Plan;  

C. Facilitating community engagement and events in the interest of advancing the implementation of the 
Small Area Plan;  

D. Formulating and submitting requests for funding to the Township Manager for consideration in the 
Capital Improvement Program Budget and Annual Operating Budget; and  

E. Other duties relative to the implementation of the Pine Grove Mills Small Area Plan.  



Board Member Request – Employer Sick Leave Ordinance 

Prasenjit Mitra 

Tuesday, February 18, 2020 

Narrative: 
 
Given the public health implications, all employees (satisfying certain conditions) in Ferguson Township 
shall have paid sick leave. The township should have a sick leave ordinance on the lines of what 
Pittsburgh passed and as was upheld by the Pennsylvania Supreme Court. 
 
1. Sick employees should not have to choose between going to work because they cannot afford to not 
get paid. Doing so spreads their disease to others and the community as a whole suffers. 
2. Pittsburgh’s ordinance requires employers with 15 or more employees give 40 hours of paid sick leave 
per year.  And employers with 15 or fewer employees provide a modest amount (upto 24 hours) of paid 
sick leave per year. 
3. Typically, the lowest income workers lack paid sick leave and a substantial number of them work in 
the food services industry and other services industries where the chances of  spread of disease are the 
most and the wages are the lowest. 
 
In order for the Township to learn more about the pros and the cons of such an ordinance and its 
feasibility, the Board directs its staff to present information to the Board of Supervisors and the Board 
discusses the pros and cons of such an ordinance in the next meeting. 
 
Recommended motion: That the Board of Supervisors direct staff to research a Township-wide employer 
sick leave ordinance and present its conclusions to the Board for further consideration. 
 



RESOLUTION  ___________ 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, CENTRE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 
AUTHORIZING THE TOWNSHIP MANAGER TO APPOINT AN ACTING MANAGER DURING 
HIS ABSENCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, CHAPTER 1, PART 
2, SECTION 207, ACTING MANAGER AND REPEALING RESOLUTION 2017-22. 
 

WHEREAS, the Administrative Code of the Township of Ferguson authorizes the 
appointment of an Acting Manager at times when the Township Manager may be temporarily 
absent or disabled, and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors desires to authorize the Township Manager to 
appoint an Acting Manager during absences when the Township Manager determines that the 
appointment of an Acting Manager would be essential to the continued effective and efficient 
operation of the Township, and  
 

WHEREAS, this Resolution does not conflict with the provisions of the Administrative 
Code nor does it expand or diminish the authority of the Board of Supervisors to remove or 
select an alternate Acting Manager in accordance with the Administrative Code, and 

 
WHEREAS, the Township Manager submits the following individuals for approval by the 

Board of Supervisors to be eligible for appointment as Acting Manager; 
 
Centrice Martin, Assistant to the Manager 
David J. Modricker, Director of Public Works 
Christopher Albright, Chief of Police 
Eric Endresen, Director of Finance 
Jenna Wargo, Director of Planning and Zoning   

 
NOW THEREFORE, the Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors hereby authorizes 

the Township Manager consistent with the Administrative Code to appoint an Acting Manager 
with immediate notification to the Board of Supervisors. 
 

RESOLVED this 18th day of February 2020. 
 
             TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
 
 

           
         By:____________________________ 

               Steve Miller, Chairman 
               Board of Supervisors 
    [ S  E  A  L ] 
ATTEST: 

 
 
By:__________________________________ 

David G. Pribulka, Secretary 



!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!
!

!!!!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

BEAVER

CALDER

ASH

BROWN
11 GRUBB
GARBAN

COLLEGE

HAFFNER

GRASS

RAY
OSBORN

WEST CAMPUS

BUCKHOUT

HARLEY

WESTON
COMMUNITY

CENTER

LOVEJOY GA
RB

AN

ROBIN

OSMOND

BUTZ

CO
RL N

HOY

ORCHARD

FOSTER

GOLFVIEW

MI
DD

LE

PATTERSON

OW
ENS

HIGHLAND

METZ

BL
UE

 C
OU

RS
E

DU
FF

MC
BA

TH

MA
DI

SO
N

OL
D 

BL
OC

K

1020

1120

1029

124

1101

123

1006

912916
938

919
115-R

119

925927

1006

918

118

924

939

1015

926

106

124

1105

127

1100

124

1109

126

1111

128

1201

1113

11191121
1203

1200
1206

115

1245-55

1191001

117

1003

115

913
111

1181004
114

1245-60

1001

930

1023

1005

123

110

1000

1021

125

112

207

1505

200

1511

211

1518

204

203

1504

215

1517

1444

1025

1012

906

925

115

915

906

117

1004

111

1005

1101

1007

100
1304

109

1315

1306

111110

1314

1308

114
116

1445

1318

140
136

1312
1310

1400

1438
1454

1451
107

1500

1455

223

201

1506

110

1512

208

207

1523

219

204

216

1520

225

1524

210

106

229

213

220

112

125

216

235

221

118

157

131

230

241

218

124

229

137

245

130

236

143

233

137

136

242

149

235

230

142

1660

241

234

1670
1680

240

1690

236

360370

480
460

470

1105
1107

224
226

12021206
1207

1212

209

200

2081028

1245-56

1610

209

242

226 225

2351541

1005

905

115-A

1012

144 148 1200 1128 1120 1114

1245-59 1245-58

1214

107
103

1117-R
13011305

1209
1207 1203

205
1034

137

1

Legend
TSD
Buildings
PSU

!

! !

! Ferguson Township Boundary

Terraces  Streetscape Distr ic t 0 450 900225 Feet

THE  BOROUGH OF STATE COLLEGE

FERGUSON TOWNSHIP

±



1027

1020

1120

1029

124

1101

123

1006

912
916

938

919
115-R

119

925

908

927

1006

933

118

924

939

1015

926

106

124

11031105

127

1100

124

1109

126

1111

128

1201

11191121
12031205

1200
1206

115

1191001

117

1003

115

913
111

1181004
114

1001

930

1023

1005

123

110

1027

1000

1021

125

112

207

1505

200

1511

211

1518

204

203

1504

215

1517

1444

1025

1012

906

925

115

909915

906

117

1004

111

1005

1101

1007

100
1304

109

1315

1306

111110

1314

1308

114
116

1445

1318

140
136

1312

1310

1400

1438
1454

1451
107

1500

1455

201

1506

110

1512

208

207

1523

219

204

216

1520

225

1524

210

106

229

213

220

112

125

216

235

221

118

131

230

241

218

124

229

137

130

236

143

233

136

149

235

230

142

1660

241 241
234

1670
1680

240236

360

480

1105
1107

224
226

12021206
1207

1212

209

200

2081028

1245-57

1610

209

226 225

1005

905

115-A

1012

144 148 1200 1128 1120 1114

1245-59

1214

107
101

103

1117
13011305

1209 1203
1205

205
1034 1032

137

1

Legend
TSD
Buildings
PSU

TSD -  PSU Propert ies 0 425 850212.5 Feet

±



_̂

_̂
_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂_̂

_̂_̂_̂̂__̂

_̂

_̂

_̂_̂

_̂

_̂_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂_̂

_̂
_̂

_̂̂__̂_̂

_̂̂_

_̂̂_̂_̂_̂_̂_̂_̂_
_̂

_̂ _̂_̂_̂_̂̂_̂_

_̂
_̂̂_
_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂
_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂
_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂
_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂̂_

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂
_̂

_̂_̂

_̂

_̂̂_̂_̂
_

_̂

_̂
_̂

_̂
_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂̂_

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂̂_̂_

_̂

1020

1029

124

1101

123

1006

938

115-R

119

925
927

1006

918924

939

1015

926

106

124

1103

127

1100

126

1111

128

1121
1201

1200

115

1191001

117

1003

115

913
111

118
1004

114

1001
1005

123

110

1000

1021

125

112

207

1505

200

1511

211

1518

204

203
1504

215

1517 1025

1012

906

925

115

909915

1004

111

1005

1101

1007

100

1315

111110

1314

1308

114
116

1445

1318

140
136

1310

1400

1438
1454

1451

1500

1455

201

1506

110

1512

208
207

1523

219

204

216

1520

225

1524

210

106

229

213

220

112

125

216

235

221

118

131

230

241

218

124

229

137

130

236

143

233

136

149

235

230

142

241 241

234

1680

240236

360

480

1105
1107

12021206
1207

1212200

2081028

1245-57

1610

209

226 225

1005

905

115-A

1012

144 148
1200 1120

1245-59

13011305

1209 1203

205
1034

137

1

Legend
TSD
Buildings

_̂ Rental_Properties

TSD -  Rental  Propert ies 0 425 850212.5 Feet

±



"/
"/

"/
"/

"/

"/

"/

"/

"/

"/"/

"/

"/

"/

"/

"/
"/

"/

"/

"/

"/

"/ "/"/
"/"/

"/"/

1020

1120

1029

124

1101

123

1006

912916
938

919
115-R

119

925927

1006

918

933

118

924

939

1015

926

106

124

1105

127

1100

124

1109

126

1111

128

1201

1113
11191121

12031205

1200
1206

115

1245-55

1191001

117

1003

115

913
111

1181004
114

1245-54
1245-53

1245-60

1245-52

1245-61

1245-62

1001

930

1023

1005

123

110

1027

1000

1021

112

207

1505

200

1511

211

1518

204

203

1504

215

1517

1444

251
257

1025

1012

906

925

115

909915

906

117

1004

111

1005

1101

1007

100
1304

109

1315

1306

111110

1314

1308

114
116

1445

1318

140
136

1312

1310

1400

1438
1454

1451
107

1500

1455

201

1506

110

1512

208

207

1523

219

204

216

1520

225

1524

210

106

229

213

220

112

125

216

235

221

118

131

230

241

218

124

229

137

245

130

236

143

233

136

242

149

235

230

142

250

1660

241

234

1670

256256

247

1680

240

255

250

236

25515211533

360

1547

480

1105
1107

224
226

12021206
1207

1212

209

200

2081028

1245-57 1245-56

1610

209

260

242

226 225

2351541

1550

1005

905

115-A

1012

144 148 1200 1128 1120 1114

1245-59 1245-58

1214

107
101

103

1117
13011305

1209 1203
1205

205
1034

137

1

Legend
TSD
Buildings

Parking_Permits
Permits by House

"/ 1
"/ 2
"/ 3
"/ 4

"/ 5 - 6
no parking
2 hour parking

TSD -  Parking  Permits 0 425 850212.5 Feet

±



1020

1120

1029

124

1101

123

1006

912916
938

919
115-R

119

925

908
927

1006

118

924

939

1015

926

106

124

1105

127

1100

124

1109

126

1111

128

1201

1113
1119

1203

1200
1206

115

1245-55

119
1001

117

1003

115

913
111

1181004
114

1245-54
1245-60

1245-52
1245-61

1245-62

1001

930

1023

1005

123

110

1000

1021

125

112

207

1505

200

1511

211

1518

204
203

1504

215

1517

1444

251

1025

906

925

115

909915

906

117

1004

111

1005

1101

1007

100
1304

109

1315

1306

111110

1314

1308

114
116

1445

1318

140
136

1312
1310

1400

1438

231

1454

1451
107

1500

1455

223

201

1506

110

1512

208
207

1523

219

204

216

1520

225

1524

210

106

229

213

220

112

125

216

175

235

221

118

157

131

230

241

218

124

229

171

137

245

130

236

143

233

137

136

242

149

235

230

142

250

1660

241

234

1670

1703

256

247

1680

240

255

250

1690
1700

236

25515211533

360

1547

340
370

480
460

341
351

430

470

431
441

1105

224
226

12021206
1207

1212

209

200

2081028

1245-57
1245-56

1610

209

260

242

226 225

2351541

1550

1005

905

115-A

1012

144 148 1200 1120 1114

1245-59
1245-58

1214

107
103

13011305

1209
1205

205
1034

137

1

Legend
TSD
Vacant Lands selection
Buildings

TSD -  Vacant  Lands 0 500 1,000250 Feet

±













CENTRE REGION COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
2643 Gateway Drive, Suite #3 

State College, PA 16801 

Phone: (814) 231-3077  Fax: (814) 231-3088  Website: www.crcog.net 

 
 

AD HOC FACILITIES COMMITTEE 
COG Forum Room 

Tuesday, February 11, 2020 
8:30 AM 

 
AGENDA 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mr. Francke will convene the meeting. 
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Members of the public are invited to comment on any items not already on the agenda 
(five minute per person time limit, please). Comments relating to specific items on the 
agenda should be deferred until that point in the meeting. 
 

3. INTRODUCTION OF NEW MEMBER 
 

The Committee will welcome the newly appointed representative from the Borough of 
State College, Mr. Jesse Barlow. 

 
4. COMMITTEE PICTURE 

 
COG staff would like to take a picture of Committee members to include on our webpage 
that discusses the Ad Hoc Facilities Committee. COG believes it would add a personal 
touch and help residents identify their elected officials when needing to reach out to them. 
 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
A copy of the minutes of the January 14, 2020 Ad Hoc Facilities Committee meeting is 
enclosed. 

 
6. MILLBROOK MARSH BOARDWALK UPDATE 
 

This is an information agenda item intended for the COG staff to share with the 
Committee the preliminary ideas for short term repairs to sections of the boardwalk at 
Millboork Marsh Nature Center, and a longer term study of the current and future 
hydrological conditions of the wetland, an assessment of the boardwalks physical 
conditions and options for the future. 
 



Ad Hoc Facilities Committee Agenda 
February 11, 2020 
Page 2 of 4 
 

At the January Facilities Committee meeting Agency staff provided an update to the 
Committee regarding the progress being made at the boardwalk.  
 
Since the previous meeting College Township has constructed permanent barricades to 
close off sections of the boardwalk and the temporary barricades were returned to State 
College Borough.  In addition, Ms. Salokangas has begun the process of obtaining 
estimates for interim repairs to the structure.  These repairs could potentially reopen one 
section of the boardwalk to the public to include the bridge over Bathgate Springs, and to 
make repairs to some of the sections that remain open. 
 
Ms. Salokangas will be in attendance to provide an update to the Committee and 
potentially outline the next steps in the process. 
 
There is no Committee action necessary at this time, but the planning, repairing, and 
funding of the boardwalk will be a recurring agenda item during 2020. 
 

7. CODE RENOVATION PROJECT 
 

This is an information agenda item intended to update the Committee on the renovation 
of the former Centre Region Parks and Recreation suite for use by Centre Region Code 
Administration.  
 
At its January 14, 2020 meeting the Committee received a report about the status of the 
Code Agency move into the vacated Parks suite.  At that meeting it was noted the bid 
opening was scheduled for Thursday, February 6, 2020 at 3:30 pm.  Accordingly, so that 
the Committee would be able to review the bid results, the February Facilities Committee 
meeting was delayed one week, from February 4 to February 11. 
 
Mr. Walt Schneider will be in attendance to share the bid results with the Committee, 
update the Committee if there are any changes to the timeline for the move, and outline 
any challenges that may lie ahead.  The Committee should receive the report and note 
areas of concern and ask questions.  
 
Looking ahead, the Committee should discuss the role is desires to have in these types of 
projects in the future and what the process should be to achieve that, including whether or 
not the Facilities Committee should be the body recommending action to the General 
Forum. Or should it be the Finance Committeee or the policy oversight Committee or a 
combination of the three groups.  
 
This is an informational agenda item and does not require action from the Committee. 
 

8. RFP FOR THE PARKING LOT AT THE COG BUILDING 
 
This is an action agenda item that asks the Facilities Committee to review and provide 
comments on a Request for Proposals for a study to assess the condition of some COG 
facilites and to authorize the issuance of the RFP as may be revised. 



Ad Hoc Facilities Committee Agenda 
February 11, 2020 
Page 3 of 4 
 

 
Over the last few months Staff has worked with Mr. Don Francke to develop a plan of 
action for assessing the parking lots that COG is responsible for maintaining.  We had 
identified seven separate paved lots/driveways and three separate gravel lots/driveways that 
COG is responsible for maintaining. 
 
Initially, the thought was to develop a Request For Proposal (RFP) to assess all of the lots, 
but that thinking has changed based on: 
 

• The lack of similarity between the lots/driveways. It does not appear that there will 
be a noticeable economy of scale gained by consolidating the RFP. 

• There could be information contained in the assessment of the parking lot at the 
COG Building that could provide more information for the other parking lot 
assessments. 

• Level of investment…prior to investing in the study of parking lots for all COG 
facilities, it could be beneficial to review the information obtained from the study 
of a single parking lot to ensure the COG is getting good value for its investment. 

 
Based on the above thought process, Staff is recommending the Facilities Committee 
authorize the release and advertisement of the enclosed RFP with proposals being due back 
to Mr. Joe Viglione by March 20, 2020.  The Facilities Committee would then review the 
proposals at its April 7, 2020 meeting. 
 

9. MAINTENANCE PLAN FOR COG FACILITIES 
 
This is an discussion agenda item intended ask the Committee members for their thoughts 
on project priorities particularily as they relate to maintenance plans for the difference 
COG facilities. These priorities will help to identify the work objectives for the Facilities 
Coordinator when that positions is filled later this year. 
 
During the second half of 2019, the bulk of the Committee meetings centered around  
the immediate operational needs/changes for the Centre Region COG and away from the 
long-term assessments and maintenance plans (the little black binder).  Topics requiring 
the immediate attention of the Committee since that time have included the relocation of 
the Parks offices, Millbrook Marsh Nature Center boardwalk, the renovation of the former 
Parks suite, offsite parking for Code vehicles, and the drafting of the job description for the 
Facilities Coordinator. 
 
Moving forward, the Chair and Vice Chair would like to circle back to the original intent 
in the binders to continue building upon the assessments and maintenance plans for COG 
owned and managed facilities.  The Committee members should come to the meeting 
prepared to discuss with staff how to prioritize their time on how to provide the best 
possible base materials for the Facilities Coordinator prior to that position’s hire date. An 
item for discussion could include how the maintenance plan should be developed. 



Ad Hoc Facilities Committee Agenda 
February 11, 2020 
Page 4 of 4 
 

Additionally, the Committee could define exactly where we were with the assessments last 
year and how to reinvigorate/move forward those assessments in a productive manner. 
 
Please remember to bring your binders to the meeting. 
 

10. FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Mr. Francke will report on the January 16, 2020 Finance Committee agenda.  Topics of 
discussion included the election of officers, setting of the meeting date, a review of the 
2020 COG budget process, the replacement of fire police vehicles, an update on the 
Regional Parks loan with Fulton Bank, and a budget amendment for parking Code 
vehicles offsite. 
 

11. OTHER BUSINESS 
 

A. Matter of Record – Attached is a flyer for the Building Re-Tuning and Operations 
Conference being held on March 3 at the Nittany Lion Inn. 
 

12. ADJOURNMENT 



CENTRE REGION COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
2643 Gateway Drive, Suite 3 

State College, PA 16801 
Phone: (814) 231-3077 ● Fax: (814) 231-3083 ● Website: www.crcog.net 

PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 
COG Forum Room 
2643 Gateway Drive 

Tuesday, February 11, 2020 
12:15 p.m. 

AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER

Chair Dan Murphy will convene the meeting.

2. CITIZEN COMMENTS

Members of the public are invited to comment on any items not already on the agenda
(five minutes per person time limit, please). Comments relating to specific items on the
agenda should be deferred to that point in the meeting.

3. COMMITTEE PICTURE

COG staff would like to take a picture of Committee members to include on our webpage
that discusses the Public Safety Committee. COG believes it would add a personal touch
and help residents identify their elected officials when needing to reach out to them.

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A copy of the minutes from the January 14, 2020 meeting of the COG Public Safety
Committee is enclosed.

5. CODE BOARD OF APPEALS — APPOINTMENT & RE-APPOINTMENTS

Traditionally, the Public Safety Committee is asked to make recommendations to the
General Forum for appointments and re-appointments to the Centre Region Building and
Housing Code Board of Appeals. The General Forum then reviews and may endorse the
Public Safety Committee recommendations and refers them to the participating
municipalities for appointment. An appointment to the Board of Appeals includes a three-
year term, and members may serve a maximum of three consecutive terms or a total of nine
years.
Municipalities in Pennsylvania are required by the Uniform Construction Code (section
501(c) of the Act (35 P. S. § 7210.501(c)) to establish and appoint members to serve on a
board of appeals. According to the UCC, the “board of appeals shall hear and rule on appeals,



Public Safety Committee Agenda 
February 11, 2020 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 

requests for variances and requests for extensions of time. An application for appeal shall be based on 
a claim that the true intent of the act or Uniform Construction Code has been incorrectly interpreted, 
the provisions of the act or Uniform Construction Code do not fully apply or an equivalent form of 
construction is to be used.” The UCC also provides that “two or more municipalities may establish 
a joint board of appeals through an intermunicipal agreement under 53 Pa.C.S. § § 2301—2315 
(relating to intergovernmental cooperation).” The six Centre Region municipalities have adopted 
ordinances to establish and maintain a regional board of appeals through the Centre 
Region COG. 
 
The existing board of appeals configuration has been in place since 2004 with the adoption 
of the Uniform Construction Code of Pennsylvania and was directly based on the appeals 
board that was in place prior to that date.  Currently the board meets very infrequently and 
between the core board and accessory boards requires the appointment of seventeen (17) 
or more industry professionals.  For many reasons, these appointments have been very 
difficult to fill.  As a result, the CRCA Agency Director is recommending that the regional 
appeals board be restructured into a smaller, more active board that would meet monthly 
and function both as an appeals board and a sounding board for the agency. 
 
In 2020 CRCA Agency Director recommends that a staff and Committee work objective 
be established to update the Articles of Agreement that establish the appeals board 
agreement. The goal is to have the new agreement in place for the start of 2021.   
 
With the current slate of regional appeals board members there is only one appointment 
that should be made so that the board can function normally while the proposed 
restructuring occurs.  This appointment is shown below.  
 
The one recommendation for re-appointment to an additional three-year term is:  
 

Property Maintenance Board: Ryan Solnosky, Ph.D., P.E.  
 
To proceed with the re-appointment of this individual, the Public Safety Committee 
should consider forwarding the following motion to the Executive Committee for referral 
to the General Forum: 
 

"That the General Forum forward the following nomination to the member 
municipalities for re-appointment to the Centre Region Building and Housing 
Board of Appeals for a three (3) year term commencing February 25, 2020:  
 

Property Maintenance Board: Ryan Solnosky, Ph.D., P.E.” 
 
6. COG BUILDING BID AWARD RECOMMENDATION 

 
This agenda item asks the Public Safety Committee to recommend to the General Forum 
(via the Executive Committee) the award of a contract to renovate Suite 1 (the previous 



Public Safety Committee Agenda 
February 11, 2020 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 

Centre Region Parks and Recreation Agency office suite) to convert it into use by the 
Centre Region Code Administration Agency (CRCA). In addition, modifications will be 
made to Suite 2 (the existing CRCA office area) to better accommodate staff. 
 
The 2020 COG budget provides $205,000 to make building improvements to Suite 1 of 
the COG building to allow the Agency to expand into that space. These improvements 
include upgrading lighting, replace storefront window system; convert former conference 
room back to a conference room; etching suite doors with Agency names for better 
identification; HVAC improvement/replacements; and security upgrades. 
 
The time schedule for renovating the vacated Parks and Recreation Agency office for use 
by the Code Agency is: 

First Advertisement – January 5, 2020 (Sunday) 
Documents Available – January 6, 2020 (Monday) 
Second Advertisement – January 19, 2020 (Sunday) 
Mandatory Prebid Meeting – January 21, 2020 (Tuesday) 
Bids Due – 3:30 pm prevailing time, February 6, 2019 (Thursday) 
Bids Opening – 4:00 pm prevailing time, February 6, 2019 (Thursday) 
Public Safety Meeting – February 11, 2020 (Tuesday) 
General Forum Meeting – February 24, 2020 (Monday) 
Notice to Proceed – February 25, 2020 (Tuesday) 
Substantial Completion – May 31, 2020 (Sunday) 
Client move in – June 1, 2020 (Monday) 

 
Six firms attended the pre-bid conference on January 21, 2020.  Sealed bids are due on 
Thursday, February 6. A tabulation of the bid results and a staff recommendation for 
proceeding will be provided to the Committee prior to or at the February 11, 2020 Public 
Safety Committee meeting. 
 
To proceed, Code Director Mr. Walt Schneider, will provide an overview of the scope of 
work for the project and the bid results, if there is a qualified low bid, the Committee may 
be asked to refer a recommendation for a contract award to the General Forum for 
approval.  

 
7. COG SOFTWARE STUDY 
 

This agenda item asks the Public Safety Committee to receive an update from Code 
Director Mr. Walt Schneider, regarding the process to select a new software package for use 
by the Code Agency and State College Borough, College, Ferguson, Halfmoon and Patton 
Townships. No Committee action is required.  
 
 
 



Public Safety Committee Agenda 
February 11, 2020 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 
8. REGIONAL FIRE PROTECTION PROGRAM UPDATES 
 

This agenda item asks the Public Safety Committee to receive updates from the Fire 
Director Mr. Steve Bair regarding: 
 

 The status of the study being conducted by ESCi that is intended to identify a 
future service model for the regional fire protection program.  ESCi has launched 
the study. Throughout the month of January, COG staff provided a large a data to 
the contractor. This data ranged from incident response and performance to 
budget and governance. With assistance from COG Planning Agency GIS data and 
files were sent to ESCi to assist in preparing mapping studies and reports. Centre 
LifeLink also provided to the consultant data on EMS response and relationships 
with the fire department. The County is providing information on dispatch which 
they have committed to complete and submit by the second week of this month. 
The consultants will be here for their first visit on March 11 and 12.  

 

 The development of agreements to implement that transfer of responsibility for the 
hazmat services from Penn State University to the COG. To implement this new 
arrangement the General Forum will need to approve two documents – a two year 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the COG and Penn State 
University and a two/three year service contract between the COG and Centre 
County. The goal is to have the Public Services Committee review and the General 
Forum approve both documents at their May meeting.  

 

9. OTHER BUSINESS  
 

A. Matter of Record – The January 2020 monthly comparison of code statistics are 
enclosed in this packet and permits issued/permits closed reports are enclosed 
(electronically only). 

B. Matter of Record – The next meeting of the Public Safety Committee is scheduled 
for Tuesday, March 10. Tentative agenda items include: continuing the discussion 
on a proposed memorandum of understanding for hazmat services and the fire 
study for proposing a future service model for the regional fire protection program. 

C. Matter of Record –The Code and Executive Directors will be proposing to the 
Human Resources Committee that the job titles for Senior Building Inspector and 
Senior Fire Inspector be changed to Division Manager, Division Head or Division 
Supervisor. It should be noted that we have other job titles in the COG that use 
Supervisor. This change is recommended because the current title “Senior” job title 
does not describe the supervisory responsibilities of the position. This is a title 
change only and will not alter the position’s pay range. It is believed the proposed 
title is more accurate and understandable to the municipal officials and the public. 

 
10. ADJOURNMENT 



CENTRE REGION COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
2643 Gateway Drive, Suite #3 

State College, PA 16801 

Phone: (814) 231-3077  Fax: (814) 231-3088  Website: www.crcog.net 

 
 

FFINANCE COMMITTEE 
COG Forum Room 

Thursday, February 13, 2020 
8:30 AM 

 
AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mr. Myers will convene the meeting. 
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Members of the public are invited to comment on any items not already on the agenda 
(five minute per person time limit, please). Comments relating to specific items on the 
agenda should be deferred until that point in the meeting. 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
A copy of the minutes from the January 16, 2020 Finance Committee meeting is enclosed 
for approval. 
 

4.       COMMITTEE PICTURE 

COG staff would like to take a picture of Committee members to include on our webpage 
that discusses the Finance Committee. COG believes it would add a personal touch and 
help residents identify their elected officials when needing to reach out to them. 

 
5. REGIONAL PARKS LOAN 

 
This is an information item relating to the options available to COG and the Centre 
Region Park Authority for managing the regional parks and recreation loan with Fulton 
Bank that has a draw-down date of June 1, 2020. During its March meeting the Finance 
Committee will be asked to take action on this loan which would involve the services of a 
financial advisor and special legal counsel. 
 
Since the Finance Committee received an update at its January meeting, staff has been 
working on putting a timeline together.  While many dates are still subject to change, a 
meeting between Ms. Salokangas, CRPR Director, and Ms. Robyn Froehlich, Stahl 
Sheaffer Engineering, occurred on February 4, 2020 which provided some additional 
clarity to the project timeline. 
 
At this time, staff is proposing a two phase bid process: 



Finance Committee Agenda 
February 13, 2020 
Page 2 of 6 
 

 
Phase I: This phase would focus on site development, escavation, grading and 
installation of underground utility infrastructure.  This portion of the project 
would be bid in late Spring/early Summer and approved in summer with 
construction starting in late summer/early fall.  The estimated cost for Phase I 
development is $2.8 to $3.0 million. 
 
Phase II: This phase would would focus on the installation of the all abilities 
playground, lighting, and other facilities.  The work would likely be advertised in 
the late summer/early fall and awarded prior to the end of 2020.  The construction 
schedule would be dependent on the weather, but the goal is to finish in 2021. 
 

Based on this information staff is recommending to invite Mr. Chris Gibbons, Concord 
Public Financial Advisors, to the March 5, 2020 meeting to discuss our options and the 
preferred way forward with the loan at Fulton Bank noting the current project appears to 
support not needing to draw all of the funds for another 18 months.  Mr. Gibbons assisted 
the COG to obtain the initial regional parks loan in 2011. 

 
The options available at this point appear to be: 
 

1. Amend the terms of the loan with Fulton Bank to extend the draw date. If this 
option is accepted, the Executive Director recommends an extension of 18 months 
be considered. 

2. Refinance the loan on the open market with either a bond issuance or a new bank 
loan. 

3. Continue with the current loan as is and on June 1, 2020 draw all the remaining 
funds from the Fulton Bank loan. 

 
Ms. Salokangas, Mr. Steff, and Mr. Viglione will be in attendance at the February meeting 
and will try to answer any questions that arise.  The Committee members should discuss 
the above information, note areas of concern, and ask questions.  The Committee 
members should then determine if they would like staff to invite Mr. Gibbons to the 
March 5, 2020 Finance Committee meeting where, based on the information received, the 
Committee should determine if Mr. Gibbons’ services should be retained and in what 
capacity. 
 

6. IRRIGATION SYSTEM AT WHITEHALL ROAD REGIONAL PARK 
 

This discussion item could potentially result in a Committee action relating to the 
installation of an irrigation system for the grass turf fields at Whitehall Road Regional 
Park. The estimated project cost is $45,000. There is a opportunity to obtain a $15,000 
grant but a local match is required.  
 
At its January meeting the Committee discussed the irrigation system at Whitehall Road 
Regional Park in the future committee agenda items and priorities section of the agenda.  
Included in that discussion was the communication from the Committee during the 2020 



Finance Committee Agenda 
February 13, 2020 
Page 3 of 6 
 

budget process that the irrigation system was an essential amenity for the park that should 
be included in the construction, but it was not funded. 
 
As the meeting minutes indicate three options for proceeding were discussed: 
 

A. The municipalities contribute to the cost of the irrigation system. One 
member believed that maintaining the fields will be a high priority and that 
installing the system at a later date will double the cost. 
 

B. The cost would be paid from the current project budget. 
 

C. Include the irrigation system as an alternate in the design documents and 
have the municipalities pledge the funding so as to allow staff to proceed with 
applying for grants. 

 
The Committee decided to continue the discussion at its February 13, 2020 meeting. The 
delay would afford the Committee members an opportunity to discuss this at their 
respective municipal meetings and bring back the position of their boards/councils on this 
issue. 
 
The Committee should discuss the irrigation system and determine if there is an action or 
recommendation that they believe should be made. 
 

7. CODE RENOVATION PROJECT 
 

This is an information agenda item intended to update the Committee on the bids for the 
renovation of the former Centre Region Parks and Recreation suite for use by Centre 
Region Code Administration.  
 
The 2020 Centre Region Code Administration Budget – Capital appropriates $205,000 
for this renovation project. A pre-bid conference was held on January 21, 2020 which was 
attended by six firms. Four bids were received on the afternoon of February 6. At its time 
of agenda preparation the bids are being reviewed and the result tabulated. This 
information will be shared with Ad Hoc COG Facilities Committee during its meeting on 
Tuesday, February 11.  At that time the Committee will decide whether to refer a 
recommendation for a bid award to the General Forum for action. 
 
Mr. Walt Schneider will be in attendance to share the bid results with the Committee, 
update the Committee if there are any changes to the timeline for the move, and outline 
any challenges that may lie ahead.  The Committee should receive the report and note 
areas of concern and ask questions.  
 

8. FOURTH QUARTER FINANCIAL UPDATE 
 

This agenda item is for informational purposes and does not require action from the 
Finance Committee. 



Finance Committee Agenda 
February 13, 2020 
Page 4 of 6 
 

 
Mr. Joe Viglione, COG Finance Director, will provide the Finance Committee with a brief 
financial report (enclosed) on the 4th quarter 2019 results. 
 

9. VEHICLE REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE REPORT 
 
This agenda item is for informational purposes and does not require action from the 
Finance Committee. 

 
Enclosed please find a copy of the vehicle maintenance report for the period of January 1 
through December 31, 2019 completed by Mr. Cary Asendorf.  The Finance Committee 
should review the report and note areas of concern. 

10. MARCH MEETING DATE 
 

The Committee should discuss moving the March meeting date up a month to allow staff 
and the investment advisor more time to investigate its options regarding the loan with 
Fulton Bank.  Staff recommends moving the meeting date forward from Thursday, March 
12, 2020 to Thursday, March 5, 2020. 
 

11. AD HOC FACILITIES COMMITTEE 
 

Mr. Francke will report on the Committee’s February 11, 2020 meeting. 
 
The Committee should receive this report and comment as it deems appropriate. 
 

12. MONTHLY REPORTS  
 
The voucher report for January 2020 is enclosed.  To proceed, the Committee should 
consider the following motion: 
 

“That the Finance Committee approves the January 2020 voucher report for the 
Centre Region COG.” 

 
The unaudited December 2019 financial reports are nearing completion and will be 
included in March’s agenda packet. Please note that year-end close-out and clean-up 
procedures are largely completed.  
 
Each month paper copies of the voucher report will be available at the meeting to folks 
who have requested paper agenda packets. If the Committee has a question about any of 
the items in these reports, please let Finance Director Joe Viglione (jviglione@crcog.net or 
231-3062) know as soon as possible, so that the information can be researched prior to the 
next Committee meeting.  

 
13. OTHER BUSINESS 
 



Finance Committee Agenda 
February 13, 2020 
Page 5 of 6 
 

A. Matter of Record – Parks and Recreation Agency Staff implemented a new software 
system, RecDesk, on February 3, 2020.   
 

B. Matter of Record - Matter of Record – As identified during the 2020 budget process, 
a goal of the Committee should be to take a step back and look at the COG budget 
from a long term strategic perspective.  While more information will be coming in 
the near future in the form of the Fire Study, the Parks Comprehensive Plan, the 
Library Strategic Plan, and other pending studies, the Committee should begin to 
develop a framework for what this process should be when the information from 
these studies becomes available.  The Committee members should consider this 
information and come to the March Finance Committee meeting ready to discuss the 
development of this initiative. 

 
C. Matter of Record – The following is an update of the status of planning and 

evaluation studies currently underway at the COG. 
 

Planning Activity Status 
1 Parks and Recreation 

Regional Plan 
The Plan was presented to the General Forum during its January 
27, 2020 meeting and was referred to the municipalities for 
comment. Responses are due March 17, 2020.    

2 Study of Regional Fire 
Protection Program 

ESCi has launched the study. Throughout the month of January, 
COG staff provided a large a data to the contractor. This data 
ranged from incident response and performance to budget and 
governance. With assistance from COG Planning Agency GIS data 
and files were sent to ESCi to assist in preparing mapping studies 
and reports. Centre LifeLink also provided to the consultant data 
on EMS response and relationships with the fire department. The 
County is providing information on dispatch which they have 
committed to complete and submit by the second week of this 
month. The consultants will be here for their first visit on March 11 
and 12. 

3 IT Study Due to staff limitations, this project did not go forward in 2019 and 
was carried into 2020.  There is agreement among COG staff and 
Borough staff (the IT service provider for 4 COG Agencies) that 
this should be a priority work objective for 2020. At this time a lead 
staff member has not been identified. 

4 Code Software Study Two vendors are scheduled to provide software demonstrations by 
mid-February. The Working Group convenes February 18th to 
discuss final candidates. Visits to current client sites slated soon 
thereafter.  

5 COG Facilities 
Evaluation 

This project will continue to move forward during 2020 with RFPs 
to study the various COG owned and managed parking lots and 
additional studies as needed. The Detailed Budget allocates $30,000 
for this project. 



Finance Committee Agenda 
February 13, 2020 
Page 6 of 6 
 

6 Executive Director 
Recruitment and 
Screening Committee  

The Executive Director Recruitment Committee narrowed the 
candidates down to 6 and will hold interviews the week of February 
10.  

7 Solar Power Purchase 
Agreement Working 
Group 

The Working Group approved State College Area School District 
as the lead entity (as recommended by legal counsel) and is in the 
process of updating the cost sharing agreement and Request For 
Proposal language accordingly.  

8 Fleet Management 
Plan/COG Building 
Parking Lot Study 

There is agreement among COG staff and the elected officials that 
this should be a priority work objective for 2020. At this time a lead 
staff member has not been identified. 

9 Evaluation of Boardwalk 
at Millbrook Marsh 
Nature Center 

This study is at a very preliminary stage. The Park and Recreation 
Director and Executive Director are contacting stakeholder groups 
about the evaluation’s scope of work and the resources that are 
available for the project.   

 
14. ADJOURNMENT 



CENTRE REGION COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
2643 Gateway Drive, Suite 3

State College, PA 16801
Phone: (814) 231-3077 Fax: (814) 231-3083 Website: www.crcog.net

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
COG Building – Forum Room

2643 Gateway Drive
February 18, 2020

12:15 PM

AGENDA

1, CALL TO ORDER

Chair Elliot Abrams will convene the meeting.

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Members of the public are invited to comment on any items not already on the agenda (five 
minutes per person time limit, please). Comments relating to specific items on the agenda should 
be deferred until that point in the meeting.

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A copy of the minutes of the January 21, 2020 Executive Committee meeting is enclosed.

4. COMMITTEE PICTURES

COG Staff would like to take a picture of Committee members to include on our webpage that 
discusses the Executive Committee. COG believes it would add a personal touch and help 
residents identify their elected officials when needing to reach out to them.

5. 2020 ROAD AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS

This agenda item, as proposed by the Transportation and Land Use Committee, asks the 
Executive Committee to schedule an informational presentation at the February 24, 2020, COG 
General Forum meeting about road and bridge projects in the Centre Region and Centre 
County that will be under construction in 2020. No action from the General Forum is required.

The presentation will focus on PennDOT and municipal construction projects that are 
anticipated to result in increased traffic congestion and delays for travelers. Although many of 
the projects to be covered are in the Centre Region, staff will also address key projects in other 
areas of Centre County that will affect travel to and from the Region. In addition, staff will 
report about ongoing efforts to communicate information about the impacts of construction 
activities to residents, visitors, employers, and businesses.



Executive Committee Agenda
February 18, 2020
Page 2 of 9

The Executive Committee should decide whether to schedule this presentation that would be 
made by Tom Zilla, CRPA Transportation Principal Planner. The presentation is expected to be 
about 10 minutes in addition to time for questions.

6. 2020 U.S. CENSUS UPDATE

This agenda item, as proposed by the Transportation and Land Use Committee, asks the 
Executive Committee to schedule an informational presentation at the February 24, 2020, COG 
General Forum meeting about the 2020 U.S. Census and Centre Region demographic trends. 
No action from the General Forum is required.

As required by the United States Constitution, the U.S. Census Bureau will be conducting the 
24th decennial census of the country’s population on April 1, 2020. Conducted every 10 years, 
the census represents a complete count of all persons in the country. In addition to providing 
valuable demographic and socioeconomic data, Census results help determine the number of 
representatives each state gets in Congress and helps inform where the federal government 
distributes hundreds of billions of dollars on an annual basis.

Over the past two years, the CRPA has been involved in several 2020 Census related programs 
that assist the Census Bureau in their efforts to count everyone in the right place. These 
programs included the Local Update of Census Addresses (LUCA) program, the Participant 
Statistical Areas Program (PSAP), and the New Construction Program. The CRPA’s role in these 
programs is summarized as follows:

Local Update of Census Addresses (LUCA) – Completed in 2018, the LUCA program 
provided municipalities with the opportunity to review and comment on the Census 
Bureau’s residential address list for their jurisdiction. The CRPA participated in the LUCA 
program on behalf of College, Harris, and Patton Townships. The CRPA provided staff 
assistance to Ferguson Township with their LUCA submission. State College Borough 
completed its own LUCA submission and Halfmoon Township’s addresses were updated by 
Centre County.

The CRPA submitted updated address lists for College, Harris, and Patton Townships in 
June 2018. These lists incorporated a significant amount of new construction that occurred 
between 2010 and 2018 as well as the removal of numerous addresses from the former 
Hilltop and Penn State mobile home parks.

In September 2019, the CRPA coordinated a final review of changes made to the Census 
Bureau’s residential address lists for College, Harris, and Patton Townships. This final review 
included changes that were made by other government entities and through regular census 
operations.

The CRPA chose to appeal several address deletions in College Township and Patton 
Township. The CRPA provided evidence such as tax assessment records, photographs, and 
details of discussions with property owners to validate why the addresses should remain on 



Executive Committee Agenda
February 18, 2020
Page 3 of 9

the Census Bureau’s residential address list.

Participant Statistical Areas Program (PSAP) – The PSAP allowed municipalities to review 
and update selected statistical area boundaries for 2020 Census data tabulation. This project 
was coordinated by SEDA-COG, with assistance from the Centre County Planning and 
Community Development Office and the CRPA. There were no area boundary changes 
suggested for the Centre Region municipalities. 

New Construction Program – Completed in October 2019, the New Construction Program 
provided municipalities with the opportunity to update the Census Bureau’s residential 
address list with living quarters for which construction is in progress during or after March 1, 
2018, and completion is expected by Census Day, April 1, 2020. The CRPA participated in 
the New Construction Program on behalf of all six Centre Region municipalities. Utilizing
building permit reports from the Code Administration, the CRPA submitted several 
hundred residential addresses that were recently constructed or will be completed by Census 
Day.

To help achieve a complete count of Centre Region residents in 2020, the Borough of State 
College and Centre County have established Complete Count Committees that are 
disseminating information to residents about the importance of the Census and the need to 
participate. Penn State University has also created a Complete Count Committee to encourage 
student participation in the Census. As Census Day approaches, the CRPA will continue to 
partner with the Census Bureau and local Complete Count Committees to share data and 
information to help ensure an accurate Census enumeration.

On December 19, 2019, the Census Bureau released the 2014-2018 American Community 
Survey (ACS) 5-Year Estimates, which provide demographic and socioeconomic indicators at the 
municipal level. CRPA staff extracted this data for the six Centre Region municipalities and 
provided it via memo in the January General Forum agenda packet. Staff will provide the 
General Forum with a presentation that outlines the upcoming 2020 Census as well as some 
important demographic and socioeconomic trends from the recently released ACS data.

The Executive Committee should decide whether to schedule this presentation that would be 
made by Mark Boeckel, CRPA Land Use Principal Planner. The presentation is expected to be 
about 10 minutes in addition to time for questions.

7. CONTRACT AWARD FOR RENOVATIONS TO COG BUILDING

This action agenda item, as proposed by the Public Safety Committee and the Finance 
Committee, asks the Executive Committee to recommend to the General Forum) the award of a 
contract to renovate the previous Centre Region Parks and Recreation Agency office suite as to 
convert it into use by the Centre Region Code Administration Agency. 

The 2020 COG budget provides $205,000 to make building improvements to the existing Parks 
& Rec suite of the COG building to allow the Agency to expand into that space. These 



Executive Committee Agenda
February 18, 2020
Page 4 of 9

improvements include upgrading lighting, replace the storefront window system; convert former 
conference room back to a conference room; etching suite doors with Agency names for better 
identification; HVAC improvement/replacements; and security upgrades.  

The time schedule for renovating the vacated Parks and Recreation Agency office for use by the 
Code Agency is:

First Advertisement – January 5, 2020 (Sunday)
Documents Available – January 6, 2020 (Monday)
Second Advertisement – January 19, 2020 (Sunday)
Mandatory Prebid Meeting – January 21, 2020 (Tuesday)
Bids Due – 3:30 pm prevailing time, February 6, 2019 (Thursday)
Bids Opening – 4:00 pm prevailing time, February 6, 2019 (Thursday)
Ad Hoc COG Facilities Committee meeting – February 11, 2020 (Tuesday)
Public Safety Meeting – February 11, 2020 (Tuesday)
Finance  Committee – February 13, 2020 (Thursday)
General Forum Meeting – February 24, 2020 (Monday)
Notice to Proceed – February 25, 2020 (Tuesday)
Substantial Completion – May 31, 2020 (Sunday)
CRCA move in – June 1, 2020 (Monday)

Six firms attended the pre-bid conference on January 21, 2020. Four sealed bids were received 
and then opened on Thursday, February 6. The bids have been discussed by the Ad Hoc COG 
Facilities Committee, the Public Safety Committee, and the Finance Committee. In summary,
the results of the bid are:

Code Renovation Project Bid Results
Bid Opening  February 6, 2020

Contractor
Completion 

Date Base Bid
Total of 

Alternates Total Bid
MidState 
Construction June 1, 2020 $  192,982.00 $  112,284.00 $  305,266.00

Stickler 
Construction May 31, 2020 $  205,000.00 $    92,326.00 $  297,326.00

Alternative 
Source 
Construction

May 30, 2020 $  195,700.00 $  137,025.00 $  332,725.00

Veronesi 
Building & 
Remodeling

May 20, 2020 $  199,900.00 $  160,579.00 $  360,479.00



Executive Committee Agenda
February 18, 2020
Page 5 of 9

The base bid is within the budgeted amount. However, the Public Services Committee and 
Finance Committee agreed that the options identified in the bid should all be accepted. These 
options increase the total project budget to $310,000. The optional bid items relate to security 
enhancements that will benefit the entire COG building, replacing two 17-year-old year pump 
units and carpet replacement for all of the office suite instead of just part of it. A complete copy 
of the cost of the optional bid items is available upon request. Both Committees believed the 
optional bid items are to the benefit of the entire COG building that is owned by the 
municipalities. 

To proceed, the Public Safety Committee and the Finance Committee recommend that the 
Executive Committee refer the following motions to the General Forum for approval:

AND

The Executive Committee should decide whether to refer these motions to the General Forum. 

8. CODE BOARD OF APPEALS — APPOINTMENT & RE-APPOINTMENTS 

This agenda item asks the Executive Committee to consider recommendations from the Public 
Safety Committee for members of the Centre Region Building and Housing Code Board of 
Appeals and to refer them to the General Forum for endorsement and to the municipalities for 
appointment. 

Traditionally, the Centre Region Code Administration Agency is asked to make 
recommendations to the General Forum for appointments and re-appointments to the Centre 
Region Building and Housing Code Board of Appeals. These suggestions are considered by the 
Public Safety Committee. The General Forum then reviews and may endorse the Committee’s 
recommendations and refer them to the participating municipalities for appointment. An 
appointment to the Board of Appeals includes a three-year term, and members may serve a 
maximum of three consecutive terms or a total of nine years. 

Municipalities in Pennsylvania are required by the Uniform Construction Code (section 501(c) 
of the Act (35 P. S. § 7210.501(c)) to establish and appoint members to serve on a board of 
appeals. According to the UCC, the “board of appeals shall hear and rule on appeals, requests for 
variances and requests for extensions of time. An application for appeal shall be based on a claim that the 
true intent of the act or Uniform Construction Code has been incorrectly interpreted, the provisions of the 



Executive Committee Agenda
February 18, 2020
Page 6 of 9

act or Uniform Construction Code do not fully apply or an equivalent form of construction is to be used.”
The UCC also provides that “two or more municipalities may establish a joint board of appeals through 
an intermunicipal agreement under 53 Pa.C.S. § § 2301—2315 (relating to intergovernmental 
cooperation).” The six Centre Region municipalities have adopted ordinances to establish and 
maintain a regional board of appeals through the Centre Region COG.

The existing board of appeals configuration has been in place since 2004 with the adoption of 
the Uniform Construction Code of Pennsylvania and was directly based on the appeals board 
that was in place prior to that date. Currently, the board meets very infrequently and between the 
core board and accessory boards require the appointment of seventeen (17) or more industry 
professionals. For many reasons, these appointments have been very difficult to fill. As a result, 
the CRCA Agency Director is recommending that the regional appeals board be restructured 
into a smaller, more active board that would meet monthly and function both as an appeals 
board and a sounding board for the agency.

In 2020 CRCA Agency Director recommends that a staff and Committee work objective be 
established to update the Articles of Agreement that establish the appeals board agreement. The 
goal is to have the new agreement in place for the start of 2021.  

With the current slate of regional appeals board members, there is only one appointment that 
should be made so that the board can function normally while the proposed restructuring occurs.  
This appointment is shown below.

The one recommendation for re-appointment to an additional three-year term is: 

Property Maintenance Board: Ryan Solnosky, Ph.D., P.E. 

To proceed with the re-appointments of this individual, the Public Safety Committee 
unanimously asks the Executive Committee to refer the following motion to the General Forum:

9. UPDATE ON THE SOLAR POWER PURCHASE AGREEMENT

This agenda item, as proposed by the Working Group for the Solar Power Purchase Agreement, 
asks the Executive Committee to schedule an informational presentation at the February 24, 
2020, COG General Forum meeting about the next steps and time schedule for the proceeding 
with the project. 

Members of the Working Group are:

1. Centre County Government Margaret Gray



Executive Committee Agenda
February 18, 2020
Page 7 of 9

2. Centre Region COG Peter Buckland
3. CC Refuse and Recycling Authority Ted Onufrak
4. College Township Lindsay Schuch
5. College Township Water Authority Adam Brumbaugh
6. Ferguson Township Eric Endresen
7. Halfmoon Township Bob Strouse
8. Harris Township Dennis Hameister
9. Patton Township Betsy Whitman
10. State College Borough Jesse Barlow
11/12. State College Area School District* Gretchen Brandt

Jim Leous
Randy Brown

13. State College Borough Water Authority Jason Grottini
14. CATA Bruce Donovan
15. Centre County Housing Authority Lori Haines
16. Centre Hall/Potter Twp Sewer Authority Nancy Mitcheltree

*two voting members

Due to questions that arose in the solicitor review of the initial cost-sharing agreement, State 
College Area School District (SCASD) has been asked to be the lead organization in hiring the 
energy consultant for investigating the SPPA. It became apparent based on the federal legal 
requirements for CATA that a lead organization would need to be specified. This request was 
made to SCASD due to their using the largest percentage share of electric usage ( about 50% of 
the total). The language in the cost-sharing agreement is currently being revised accordingly. The 
SCASD Board of Directors approved SCASD becoming the lead organization at its February 3, 
2020 meeting.

The individual entities will vote on the intergovernmental cost-sharing agreement by March 24, 
2020. On March 26, 2020, the intergovernmental cost-sharing agreement will be established and 
the SPPA Working Group will release the RFP for Energy Consultant Services. The costs 
anticipated are for an energy consultant and legal services to investigate the viability of investing 
in a joint SPPA. These costs are separate from any potential energy contract and do no obligate 
SCASD in any financial way related to the purchasing of energy through a contract.

The Executive Committee should decide whether to schedule this presentation that would be 
made by Peter Buck, SPPA Working Group Chair and COG’s representative to the Working 
Group.

10. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

The Executive Director will report on current matters including the status of the boardwalk at 
the Millbrook Marsh Nature Center and the recruitment process for COG’s next Executive 
Director.



Executive Committee Agenda
February 18, 2020
Page 8 of 9

11. OTHER BUSINESS

A. Matter of Record – Next month’s meeting of the General Forum is scheduled for March
23, 2020, at the COG Building. Tentative agenda items include: 2019 fire activity report, 
endorsement of a possible change in start time for regional refuse collection service,
municipal comments on the Parks and Recreation Regional Comprehensive Plan and the 
appointment of COG’s next Executive Director.

B. Matter of Record – The following is an update of the status of planning and evaluation 
studies currently underway at the COG.

C. Matter of Record – Enclosed please find communication about a recent donation to 
Centre LifeLink EMS.

Planning Activity Status
1 Parks and Recreation 

Regional Plan
The Plan was presented to the General Forum during its January 
27, 2020 meeting and was referred to the municipalities for 
comment. Responses are due March 17, 2020.   

2 Study of Regional Fire 
Protection Program

ESCi, the project consultant, has launched the study. Throughout 
the month of January, COG staff provided background information 
and data to the consultant. This information ranged from incident 
response and performance to budget and governance. With 
assistance from COG Planning Agency, GIS data and files were sent 
to ESCi to assist in preparing mapping studies and reports. Centre 
LifeLink also provided to the consultant data on EMS response and 
relationships with the fire department. The County is providing 
information on dispatch which they have committed to complete 
and submit by the second week of this month. The consultants will 
be here for their first visit on March 11 and 12.

3 IT Study Due to staff limitations, this project did not go forward in 2019 and 
was carried into 2020. There is agreement among COG staff and 
Borough staff (the IT service provider for 4 COG Agencies) that 
this should be a priority work objective for 2020. At this time a lead 
staff member has not been identified.

4 Code Software Study Two software vendors conducted on-site demonstrations during
mid-February. The Working Group convenes February 18th to 
schedule site visits to see how the software works in the field.

5 COG Facilities 
Evaluation

During its February 11 meeting the Ad Hoc COG Facilities 
Committee authorized the release of an RFP for an engineering 
study to evaluate the condition of the parking lot, ADA 
compliance, sidewalks, and stormwater facilities at the COG 
building. The information gained from this project will be used to 
enhance capital planning and budgeting. Evaluation of other 
regional facilities maintained by the COG will be conducted in the 
future and possibly include the Patton Township Fire Station and 



Executive Committee Agenda
February 18, 2020
Page 9 of 9

the Park Forest Pool. The Detailed Budget allocates $30,000 for 
these evaluations.

6 Executive Director 
Recruitment and 
Screening Committee 

The Executive Director Recruitment Committee held six interviews 
on February 10 and referred three candidates to meet with the 
Executive Committee.

7 Solar Power Purchase 
Agreement Working 
Group

The Working Group approved State College Area School District 
as the lead entity (as recommended by legal counsel) and is in the 
process of updating the Cost-Sharing Agreement and Request For 
Proposal for Consulting Services language accordingly. 

8 Fleet Management 
Plan/COG Building 
Parking Lot Study

There is agreement among COG staff and the elected officials that 
this should be a priority work objective for 2020. At this time a lead 
staff member has not been identified.

9 Evaluation of Boardwalk 
at Millbrook Marsh 
Nature Center

This study is at a very preliminary stage. The P & R Director and 
Executive Director are contacting stakeholder groups (ClearWater 
Conservancy, PSU, Nature Center Advisory Committee) about the 
idea of forming a Working Group to develop a scope of work for an 
evaluation of the boardwalk and next steps and what local resources
are available for the study. 

12. TENTATIVE AGENDA ITEMS

The following are agenda items tentatively scheduled for discussion at the February 24, 2020,
General Forum meeting, which will be held in the Centre Region COG Building. 

A. Pledge of Allegiance
B. 2020 Transportation Projects
C. 2020 U.S. Census
D. SPPA Update
E. Bid Award for COG Building Renovations

13. EXECUTIVE SESSION

Mr. Abrams will recess the regular meeting to an executive session to discuss personnel matters.

14. ADJOURNMENT



 

  
 

Manager’s Report 
February 18, 2020 

 
1. Two demonstrations were hosted by the Centre Region Code Agency from 

vendors interested in providing the regional permitting and code enforcement 
software. Once feedback is received from participants in the demonstrations, the 
next phases will be to receive proposals and conduct site visits of other 
communities who use the software. 

 
2. I attended a meeting facilitated by the Penn State College of Engineering and 

residents of the Stonebridge Planned Residential Development on February 4th. 
The meeting was an opportunity to hear from residents and discuss potential 
mitigation. 
 

3. A meeting of the Ferguson Township Industrial and Commercial Development 
Authority was held on February 5th. The meeting agenda included the election of 
officers and an update on economic development projects of interest to the 
Authority. The Authority also welcomed Chris Daher as its newest member. 
 

4. Staff is preparing to issue a Request for Proposals for qualified firms to conduct a 
fire station study to consider a satellite station in Ferguson Township. The process 
will involve solicitation of a Request for Information from firms to provide a 
recommendation on methodology and will be followed by an RFP for selected firms 
to provide a detailed proposal. Assuming a qualified response is received, the 
Board will be asked to issue an award in April. 
 

5. Beginning in March, Rhonda Demchak will be taking over as Recording Secretary 
for the Board of Supervisors Regular Meetings. Ms. Demchak has been hired 
through a local firm and will be introduced to the Board at the next meeting. 



 

 

- A Home Rule Municipality - 

 

TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
3147 Research Drive •  State College, Pennsylvania 16801 

Telephone: 814-238-4651 •  Fax: 814-238-3454 

www.twp.ferguson.pa.us 

 

  
 

Public Works Director’s Report to the Board of Supervisors 

for the regular meeting on February 18, 2020 

 

1. Musser Gap Trail Crossing on SR45: An agreement between PSU (applicant for the 
crossing) and PennDOT indicates that PennDOT is responsible for the paint legends. State 
legislation however, indicates that municipalities are responsible for such trail crossing 
markings. At this time, neither PSU nor PennDOT are accepting responsibility to maintain the 
markings, and PennDOT has indicated they have bumped the issue to the Office of Chief 
Council for a determination. It may be that a specific agreement by PennDOT for a specific trail 
crossing bears more governance/weight than a general legislative statement. Ferguson 
Township was not the applicant for the crossing, nor was the Township (to my knowledge) 
notified of a responsibility to maintain the crossing. Should Ferguson Township paint the 
markings, the estimate is a couple hundred dollars annually for the paint lines and legends. 
This does not include the cost of any future sign repairs. 

2. Renovations to Township Administration Building: Renovations continue in Phase 2 
(admin, finance, engineering/planning and zoning). Admin section is complete. GIS work area 
is complete. Work is underway in Phase 3 (lobby, hallway, custodian area, police storage 
room). The receptionist relocated to another workstation to answer phones. Walk-ins are 
directed to another receiving station in the lobby. Work is expected to continue into March. 

3. Proposed Public Works Maintenance Facility– A professional services coordination meeting 
was held on February 10th with the Architect design team, Construction Management team, 
Special Inspections Firm, and the Owner. Following this meeting, a pre-construction 
coordination meeting was held with all the above and the 4 prime contractors and Marcus 
Sheffer, LEED consultant. During the meeting, the group reviewed LEED construction 
requirements, the submittal process, roles and responsibilities and lines of communications of 
all parties involved. Work is scheduled to start March 16, 2020, pending adequate weather 
conditions. Administrative work and long lead time submittals are in process. Bi-weekly 
construction progress meetings will start March 3rd. All requests for information, submittals, 
bulletins, will be posted and shared through a file sharing site maintained by the Construction 
Management firm, WRA. 

4. Stormwater Fee Study Phase 2 –(same) Staff and the consultant, WOOD, have been 
addressing Stormwater Advisory Committee (SAC) concerns, reviewing the cost of service, 
better defining service areas, refining the scope of service to reduce costs, revising the time 
period of cost distribution, and reviewing the effect on an anticipated fee structure. A final fee 
structure was not proposed to the SAC at their last meeting in 2019. Two additional meetings 



 

 

 

of the SAC have been established; one on March 25th and one TBD in April. Once the SAC 
completes its work, the consultant will prepare a report for the BOS. Next steps starting in April 
include outreach and education, public meetings, and a work-session with the BOS to review 
the program and determine a course to move forward, “go or no-go” with a public hearing for 
adoption of a stormwater fee program. 

5. Arborist and Ferguson Township Tree Commission – The FTTC meets on February 18th. 
At the February meeting, it is expected the FTTC will again start work on the draft tree 
preservation ordinance, discuss bylaws for the group, and review a draft RFP for tree canopy 
survey. 

6. Maintenance Section: Winter operations continue. When not performing winter operations the 
road crew has been installing property line fence posts and rails in Songbird Sanctuary and 
Haymarket Park and completing various work orders, cleaning and repairing vehicles. 

7. Contract 2019-C15 Street Tree Pruning: This contract was awarded to Nature’s Canopy and 
includes pruning 767 street trees in Saybook, Greenleaf Manor, and Pine Grove Mills 
neighborhoods. Work is expected to start on February 10th in the Saybrook neighborhood. 

8. Contract 2020-C1 Street Improvement Project (portions of Blue Course Drive and 
Saratoga Drive) Survey is complete. Design is underway for improvements to sections of 
these two roads including inlet repairs, curb repairs, asphalt repairs and an asphalt overlay. An 
open house is planned for February 18th from 4pm to 6pm in the main meeting room of the 
Township building. Adjoining property owners are sent invitations to attend. The project should 
be let in late February for an anticipated bid opening on March 17th. 

9. Contract 2020-C2 Street Improvement Project (Dry Hollow Road, Deibler Road, portion 
of Whitehall Road) – Design is underway. Work includes base repair, asphalt milling, and 
paving a new asphalt wearing course on Whitehall Road from Timothy Lane to the County line. 
Some sections of guiderail will be replaced. Similar work is planned for a section of Deibler 
Road and Dry Hollow Road. A utility coordination meeting was held on January 31st. An open 
house is planned for February 18th from 4pm to 6pm in the main meeting room of the Township 
building. Adjoining property owners are sent invitations to attend. The project should be let in 
late February for an anticipated bid opening on March 17th. 

10. Contract 2020-C6 Curb and Ramp upgrades: This is an annual contract to update and 
replace curb ramps on sidewalks to meet ADA requirements on roads that receive 
microsurfacing. It is anticipated that bids will be opended on March 10th.  

11. Contract 2020-C9 Microsurfacing: Microsurfacing is a pavement preservation technique and 
a contract is let annually. This year the following roads are planned for microsurfacing: 

Road Name From Street To Street 
James Ave Stonebridge Stonebridge 
Red Lion Stonebridge Kings Ct 

Chownings Ct Red Lion Cul-De-Sac 
Williamsburg Red Lion Cul-De-Sac 

Kings Ct Williamsburg Cul-De-Sac 



 

 

 

Wetherburn Dr Williamsburg Stonebridge 
      

Aaron Dr N Atherton St Ent Twp Rd 
      

Horseshoe Cir Tadpole Tadpole 
      

Beaver Branch Rd Tadpole cul-de-sac 
      

Butz End E Beaver Ave 
W Beaver Ave Twp Line Corl St 
S Osmond St W Collge Ave Twp Line 

Hoy St W Collge Ave Highland Alley 
S Corl W Collge Ave Highland Alley 

      
Fairbrook W Whitehall Cul-de-sac 
Greenlee Fairbrook Cul-de-sac 

Beaverbook Fairbrook Cul-de-sac 
 

12. Contract 2020-C8: Line Striping Contract: Each year the Township paints lines and legends 
and offers other municipalities the opportunity to piggyback on this contract. 11 other 
municipalities take advantage of this contract. The contract will be advertised on February 11th 
for a bid opening on February 25th. 

13. Contract 2020-C13 Street Tree Planting This work includes planting 43 street trees and was 
awarded to Luther Lawn Service LLC. A notice to proceed was issued subject to providing the 
required insurance certification and meeting with the Township Arborist for a pre-construction 
meeting. Tree planting is typically done in April. 

 



 
From: "Seybert,Ron" <rseybert@twp.ferguson.pa.us> 
Date: February 11, 2020 at 3:54:15 PM EST 
To: "Modricker,David" <dmodricker@twp.ferguson.pa.us> 
Subject: Speed Reduction Sign on West Pine Grove Road 

 Hey Dave, 
  
I did a field visit this afternoon to get information to request a permit from PennDOT to install a speed reduction warning sign on West Pine Grove 
Road as you requested from the BOS meeting.  I discovered that the sign already exists.  Should I do anything more with this? 
  
Thanks, 
RA 
  
Ronald A. Seybert Jr., P.E. 
Ferguson Township Engineer 
3147 Research Drive 
State College, PA 16801 
814‐238‐4651 
  
IMPORTANT WARNING: The information in this message (and the documents attached to it, if any) is confidential and may be legally privileged. It is 
intended solely  for  the addressee. Access  to  this message by anyone else  is unauthorized.  If you are not  the  intended recipient, any disclosure, 
copying, distribution or any action taken, or omitted to be taken, in reliance on it is prohibited and may be unlawful. If you have received this message 
in error, please delete all electronic copies of this message (and the documents attached to it, if any), destroy any hard copies you may have created 
and notify me immediately by replying to this email. Thank you. 
  
 
 

 



 
 

- A Home Rule Municipality - 

 

TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
3147 Research Drive  •  State College, Pennsylvania 16801 
Telephone: 814-238-4651  •   Fax: 814-238-3454 
www.twp.ferguson.pa.us 
 

PLANNING & ZONING DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
Tuesday, February 13, 2020 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
Planning Commission met Monday, February 10, 2020 and discussed the Terraced Streetscape District and 
Request for Proposal (RFP) process, as well as the upcoming work sessions related to the Zoning Map 
Amendment Process. Planning Commission recommended that the Pine Grove Mills (Village District) 
meeting be postponed until the standing advisory committee is appointed. Planning Commission also 
recommended that the Industrial Zoning District have a separate meeting to allow for more in depth 
discussion for that District.  

LAND DEVELOPMENT PLANS AND OTHER PROJECTS 

1. Active Plans are listed below for the Board of Supervisors (2/12/20). 
o Whitehall Road Regional Park (intersection of Blue Course Drive and Whitehall Road) 
o Harner Farm Subdivision (24-004-067 and replot 24-4-67C) 
o Orchard View Subdivision (24-004-,067-,0000) 
o Whitehall Road Sheetz Land Development Plan (24-4-67 and replot 24-4-67C) 

2. Planning and Zoning Staff attended the Permitting Software demonstrations for Viewpoint and 
Traisr. 

3. Community Planner attended the CRPA/Municipal Staff Meeting. 
4. PZ Director attended the GIS Imagery demonstration at the Borough. 
5. PZ Staff met with the Business Analyst for the Borough of State College and worked on difficulties 

staff has been having with Munis. 
6. PZ Director met with Foxpointe/Hunter’s Chase HOA representatives to help alleviate concerns 

about property maintenance.  
7. PZ Staff met to review Sign Ordinance amendments. 
8. PZ/PW Staff met with ESRI and was provided with an ArcGIS overview and understanding our 

Township’s needs. 

UPCOMING ZONING HEARING BOARD MEETINGS 

1. The Zoning Hearing Board will be meeting February 25, 2020 to review a variance request for a 
property at 3765 West College Avenue (RA—Rural Agricultural/ COD—Corridor Overlay District). 
The applicant, The Islamic Society of Central PA, is requesting a variance from Chapter 27-701; Ch. 
27-701.C.1; Ch. 27-701.I; Ch. 27-701.H: Floodplain Conservation Regulations. 



 

- A Home Rule Municipality - 

 

2. The Zoning Hearing Board will be meeting February 25, 2020 to review an Appeal of Decision and 
Variance request for 900, 904, 906, 912, 916 West College Avenue (TS—Terraced Streetscape 
District). The applicant, York Acquisitions LLC, is appealing the determination of the Zoning 
Administrator that the first floor cannot be used for parking (Ch. 27-304.B.b.). York Acquisitions is 
also requesting a variance to be permitted to have parking on the first floor of the building (Ch. 
27-304.B.3.b.).  



 

 

 

Part I Crimes Summary 

Previous 

Month 

Jan. 2019 

Current 

Month       

Jan. 2020 

Previous 

YTD 

   Jan. 2019 

Current 

YTD 

Jan.2020 

Homicide 0 0 0 0 

Rape 0 1 0 1 

Robbery 0 0 0 0 

Assault 2 2 2 2 

Burglary 1 0 1 0 

Theft 6 0 6 0 

Auto Theft 0 0 0 0 

Arson 0 0 0 0 

Total 9 3 9 3 
 

 

Part II Crimes Summary 

Previous 

Month 

Jan. 2019 

Current 

Month      

Jan. 2020 

Previous 

YTD 

Jan. 2019 

Current 

YTD 

Jan. 2020 

Forgery 0 0 0 0 

Fraud 7 4 7 4 

Embezzlement 0 0 0 0 

Receiving Stolen Property 0 0 0 0 

Criminal Mischief 4 0 4 0 

Weapons Violation 0 0 0 0 

Prostitution and Commercialized Vice 0 0 0 0 

Sex Offense 0 2 0 2 

Drug Violation 1 1 1 1 

Offenses Against Family 0 0 0 0 

DUI 1 2 1 2 

Liquor Laws (minors law, furnishing, false ID) 2 0 2 0 

Public Intoxication 3 1 3 1 

Disorderly Conduct 19 17 19 17 

Vagrancy 0 0 0 0 

All Other Criminal 4 2 4 2 

Total 41 29 41 29 
 

 

Total Crimes 

Previous 

Month 

Jan. 2019 

Current 

Month      

Jan. 2020 

Previous 

YTD 

Jan. 2019 

Current 

YTD  

Jan. 2020 

Part I Crimes 9 3 9 3 

Part II Crimes 41 29 41 29 

Total 50 32 50 32 

FERGUSON TOWNSHIP POLICE DEPARTMENT 

January 2020 Calls for Service 



 

 

 

Other Calls for Service 

Previous 

Month 

Jan. 2019 

Current 

Month       

Jan. 2020 

Previous 

YTD 

Jan. 2019 

Current 

YTD 

Jan. 2020 

Vehicle Code - Crashes 26 19 26 19 

Vehicle Code - Other Traffic Incidents 41 51 41 51 

Health and Safety – EMS Assist 56 52 56 52 

Health and Safety – Fire Assist 7 9 7 9 

Other Health and Safety Incidents 16 14 16 14 

Alarms 9 15 9 15 

Suspicious Activity 31 36 31 36 

Unsecure Property 0 2 0 2 

Found Property 4 2 4 2 

Lost Property 4 5 4 5 

Community Relations/ Crime Prevention 9 5 9 5 

Car Seat Check 0 1 0 1 

School Check 17 28 17 28 

Township Ordinances 15 9 15 9 

Request for Assistance – Attempt to locate 5 4 5 4 

Request for Assistance – Can-Help 2 0 2 0 

Request for Assistance – Civil Matter 13 6 13 6 

Request for Assistance - Other 33 48 33 48 

Missing Persons/ Runaways 3 0 3 0 

Animal Complaints 7 9 7 9 

Department Information 3 3 3 3 

Assist Other Agencies 11 15 11 15 

Total 312 333 312 333 

 

 

Total Calls for Service 

Previous 

Month 

Jan. 2019 

Current 

Month      

Jan. 2020 

Previous 

YTD 

Jan. 2019 

Current 

YTD 

Jan. 2020 

Part I Crimes 9 3 9 3 

Part II Crimes 41 29 41 29 

Other Calls for Service 312 333 312 333 

Total 362 365 362 365 

 

FERGUSON TOWNSHIP POLICE DEPARTMENT 

January 2020 Calls for Service 



JANUARY 2020 

 

 

2019 2020 
Previous  

YTD 

Current 

YTD 
Notes: 

Traffic 

Citations 
45 43 45 43 

 

Parking 

Tickets 
94 97 94 97 

 

Traffic Stops 116 182 116 182 
 

Criminal 

Arrests 
20 11 20 11 

 

Supplements 198 111 198 111 
 

Hearings 15 24 15 24 
 

Med Return 18.90 16.24 18.90 16.24 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Department Notes: 

 Officers served a mental health warrant on a 26-year-old State College man.  As the male was 

being transported to the hospital, he became combative with police and EMS staff.  An officer 

sustained minor injuries as a result of being kicked by the male.  The male was eventually 

sedated by EMS and transported to the hospital.  Charges will be filed against the male. 

 A 34-year-old Moshannon man was arrested and charged with Strangulation and Simple Assault.  

The man punched and strangled his girlfriend. 

 On July 9, 2019, officers responded to a single vehicle crash on West Gatesburg Rd.  The 

investigation has concluded  and charges of driving under the influence were filed against the 

driver, 37-year-old Port Matilda man. 

FERGUSON TOWNSHIP POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

January 2020  

Note: 

 Traffic Stops may not include pre scheduled selective enforcement details where two or more police vehicles 

are assigned for specific enforcement purposes (such as Aggressive Driving Grant details). 

 Criminal Arrests are the number of people arrested, not the number of charges, counts or cases cleared.  

These include arrests made at the time of the incident as well as those filed after an extended investigation. 

 



JANUARY 2020 

 A 42-year-old State College man was charged with Theft of Mislaid Property.  The man found a 

wallet in the parking lot of a business.  He kept the wallet and cash. 

 On January 11 at 2:05 a.m., officers responded to Circleville Rd near Oxford Circle for a single 

vehicle crash with injuries and entrapment.  The 19-year-old State College man was westbound 

on Circleville Rd.  The driver failed to negotiate the curve on Circleville Rd near Oxford Circle.  

The vehicle went off the road and collided with a tree.  The driver was pinned inside the vehicle 

and had to be extricated from the wreckage by the Alpha Fire Department.  The driver was 

flown to UPMC Altoona.  The driver sustained a broken leg and has since been released from the 

hospital.  The investigation is active.   

 Act 27 of 2015 requires all police departments, if the victim consents, to submit all sexual 

assault evidence to an approved laboratory for analysis.   For 2019, we had no untested kits. 

Investigations 

 Detectives filed Harassment charges against a 59-year-old Lewistown woman.  She is accused 

striking an elderly resident of an assisted care facility. 

 Detectives are investigating two child sexual assault cases.  The cases are unrelated. 

 Detectives are investigating a currency exchange scam.  The victim wired $2,000 to the suspect 

but the suspect never provided the exchange currency.  

Community Relations: 

 Conducted several Run Hide Fight training sessions. 

 Officers conducted several Run Hide Fight drills at local schools. 




























	.3 ORDINANCE - Chapter 15 Motor Vehicles and Traffic Amendment.pdf
	Blank Page

	.8 Terraced Streetscape District Amendment - Illustrations.pdf
	TSD (002).pdf
	1-2020_2_10 TSD Maps.pdf
	TSD_Parking
	TSD_PSU
	TSD_Rental Properties
	TSD_Vacant Maps


	11d Chief of Police Report - January 2020.pdf
	January 20 Combined.pdf (p.1-14)
	January 20 Combined.pdf (p.1-6)
	1JANUARY 2020 Calls for service.pdf (p.1-2)
	1JANUARY 2020 Stats & Info.pdf (p.3-4)
	doc00776420200206111506.pdf (p.5-6)

	doc00777120200206141832.pdf (p.7-14)

	doc00777720200206150853.pdf (p.15-17)




